
~ ~
~ ~

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

9606240357 960bi7
PDR ADQCK 05000220 ''
X PDR



Tallix Casting
Sculptures for

Presidential
Memorial

'I
!

A sculpture of former President
Franklin D. Roosevelt willbe a

centerpiece for the
FDR Memorial, which is being

built on a 2b-acre site in
Washington, D.C.

Award-winning sculptor
Neil Estern selected Tallix Art

Foundry to cast three
sculptures he completed

for the Memorial ~

Tallix, located in Beacon, N.Y.,
is among the world's largest

and most respected full
service foundries for art casting

and fabrication. It is

appropriate that Tallix was
chosen for the

casting since it is located only
25 miles south of FDR's home

and library, which is located in
Hyde Park in Dutchess County.

Shown in the foreground is a
35-inch maquette, which

was used to create the clay
model, which measures

8 1/2 feet in height.
The finished sculpture willbe

cast in bronze for the Memorial,
which will become only the
fourth Presidential Memorial

in the nation's capital ~

Central Hudson takes pride in having Tallix
as a customer, and we are pleased
that Tallix is participating in our Energy Solutions
program, which helps our customers
improve their competitiveness.
We have been working closely with Tallix
to identify ways to best utilize their energy capacity
and, in turn, improve their productivity.
For more information about Energy Solutions,
please see pages eight and nine of this report.
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Einanciai Highlights
~l 1994 Ch(~ng

Operating Revenues

Net Income

$512,215,000

$52,722,000

$ 515,668,000

$ 50,929,000

(.7)%

3.5%

Earnings Per Share $2.74

Average Shares Outstanding 17,380,000

Dividends Declared Per Share $2.095

$2.68

17,102,000

$2.075

2.2%

1.6%

1.0%

Total Assets $ 1,250,092,000 $ 1,250,781,000

Electric Sales-
Own Territory (kwh.)

Natural Gas Firm Sales
(thousands of cubic feet)

Electric Custorners-
Own Territory (average)

Firm Gas Customers (average)

4A77A02,000

9 649,000

261,876

59,841

4,567,693,000

10,104,000

259,765

59A24

(2.0)%

(4.5)%

.8%

.7%

@III'lll
U53QOI7ll

Keepi>rg Tl)eCustomer InFocus
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Chairman's Report

The past year will be remembered as a
good, solid year for our shareholders and as
a pivotal year in our four-year recovery from
the loss of thousands of manufacturing jobs
in the Mid-Hudson Valley.

With respect to the financial results for
1995, I am pleased to report the following:

~ Earnings per share were $2.74 during
1995, up 2 percent from $2.68 in 1994.

~ Dividends paid to shareholders
increased 1 percent from $2.07 in 1994 to
$2.09 in 1995. During the past five years, the Left, Pant J. Ganci, President anrl Chief

average annual increase in the dividend
ClmirnIan and ChiefExeat tive Officer, at the

was 3.1 percent. Neo YorkStock Exchange to newark the 50th
~ Book value per share increased from anniversanf ofCentral Hudson'sconnnon

$25 34 at the end of 1994 to $25 96 at the stocklistingon the NYSE.

end of 1995.
~ Our Company continues to be in an excellent cash position.
~ The dividend payout ratio for 1995 was 76 percent, which compares

with 77 percent in 1994. In keeping with our dividend policy, we are
implementing a modest and gradual reduction in the payout ratio in order to
reach our target of 70 percent.

~ As pari of our program of reducing the cost of capital, we redeemed all
of our outstanding 7A4% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G, at a
redemption price of $ 101.22 per share on October 1, 1995 and all of our
outstanding 7.72% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F, at a redemption price
of $ 101.00 per share on January 1, 1996. Savings on the payment of dividends
amount to $ 1.9 million annually.

~ The credit ratings on our First Mortgage Bonds have been maintained at
"A"by one rating agency and at "A-"or the equivalent by three other rating
agencies. We are pleased that in reaffirming our "A-" rating, Standard and
Poors revised its outlook on Central Hudson from "stable" to "positive," citing
the Company's "expectation of sustainable and modest financial
improvement based on gradual economic growth and lower capital
spending requirements."

We recognize the positive outlook of Standard and Poors, and we are
perhaps even more optimistic than the rating agency based on our financial
results for 1995.

Central Hudson Gas &Electric Corporation



For the three-year period 1992 through 1994, our industrial electric sales
dropped by 30 percent and our total electric sales decreased by ten
percent. During 1995, however, there was evidence that the economy in
our service area was rebounding. As a result, we are forecasting an
increase in electric sales for 1996.

While we are pleased by signs of a sales turn-around, we are equally
pleased that during the period of declining sales we actually strengthened
our financial position and enhanced service to our customers while
operating the business with fewer employees.

We also continued to stabilize electric prices. During 1995, our electric
prices were the lowest in the state for the third consecutive year among the
seven investor-owned electric companies which serve New York State. In
addition, our average price per kilowatt-hour was lower than in New
England and in parts of our neighboring states to the south.

For the last several years, we also have been successful in controlling our
natural gas prices. However, during 1995 it became necessary to file for a
price increase. The proposed increase, if approved, would increase the
price by an average of three percent, and would not become effective
until October 1996. It would be the first increase in base rates since 1991.
While we regret the need to increase prices, we are pleased that our
natural gas prices have risen at less than half the rate of inflation during the
last decade.

Looking to 1996, it will be a year when a number of things come
together, particularly in the regulatory and public policy arenas with respect
to competition in the electric industry.

We expect continuing regulation at the federal level which would
require electric companies in the State to "open" their electric transmission
systems to "outside" parties. At the state level, we have been actively
participating in a proceeding being conducted by the Public Service
Commission on how to bring about competition in New York State.

In the context of this proceeding, Central Hudson joined with the other
electric companies in the State in proposing a plan which would replace
regulation of electric generation with competition at the wholesale level.
Without going into detail about a very complex issue, I want to assure you
that the plan sets forth principles which protect the interests of our
shareholders and our customers.

While it is uncertain whether or not the utilities'lan will be adopted for
implementation, some form of competitive environment will emerge in the
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months ahead. What is certain is our continuing advocacy of the following
principles:

~ Competition must be in the best interest of all of our customers, and
our average price of electricity must not be increased.

~ There must be an orderly transition to competition. A stable and
efficient wholesale market must be established before moving
to a retail market place.

~ The reliability of the electric transmission systems must be maintained.
~ Utilitycompanies must maintain customer focus, be allowed to

recover the cost of all "stranded" assets, improve productivity,
stabilize prices and grow their business.

~ The State must evaluate public policy regarding taxation and social
and environmental issues in order to develop a level playing
field prior to providing competition at the retail level.

~ Regulatory mandates (including the utility's obligation to serve all
customers, service contracts, pricing and performance-based
regulation) must be reviewed before introducing retail
competition.

Despite the many uncertainties posed by competition, we are moving
forward with a number of programs and activities which we believe will
enable us to compete effectively in a new market-driven business
environment. The text in this year's annual report highlights the following
initiatives:

~ Economic Development, which is helping to revitalize the economy
of our service area,

~ Energy Solutions, which are helping our business customers improve
their competitiveness,

~ Marketing, which is helping customers take advantage of new
energy technologies, products and services,

~ Existing Assets, which are being used in innovative ways to strengthen
our competitive position.

On behalf of the entire Central Hudson organization, I want to assure you
that we are working hard to meet the challenge of competition and to
meet your expectations. Our directors, officers and employees appreciate
your support.

Very trulyyours,

Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

1
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MovingVigorously Toward the 21st Century

Central Hudson is transforming itselfinto a
market ba-sed, customer dr-iUen organization

Our focus is changing fromproducing and
supplying energy to capturing markets

In addition to being the lowest cost -supplier,
we plan on being the highest ual-ue provider

Historically, the utilityindustry has not been driven by a marketing strategy.
As a regulated business, our industry developed a "one-size-fits-all"

service and pricing structure.

In the world of competition, however, one size does not fitall ~

Not only is it tough to be all things to all customers, it is unprofitable.

We willachieve the benefits of competitive markets by producing,
servicing and pricing products that meet customer needs

and create profit opportunities.

Our marketing strategy starts with identifying markets and customers and the
unique advantages we have for offering customers higher-quality,

superior service at lower costs.

We are focusing on what we do best. We have a special knowledge of
customers and energy markets in the Mid-Hudson Valley. We have cost-

effective facilities and the technical abilityto offer a variety of energy ser vices.

Our business strategy is to produce what customers want, deliver it
according to their schedule, and offer pricing and

billingoptions that reflect their needs,
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The 5'ocus ofOur MarketingProgram
is E'conomic Development

For the past few years, the creation ofjobs
and the economic revitalization of the Mid-Hudson Valley

has been the greatest single concern of the people in the region.

In response to that concern, we have assumed a leadership role
in a combined marketing effort being undertaken by the public and

private sectors to stimulate job recovery in the region.

Since the spring of 1993, for example, more than 2,300 jobs
have been created or retained in Dutchess County. These jobs involve

30 businesses and more than 895,000 square feet of space.
All together, more than 4,300 jobs have been created or retained

in the region during the past three years, and there is a strong possibility
of achieving our goal of adding 5,000 full-timejobs by the end of 1997.

We are pleased that our electric prices, which were
the lowest in the state for the third consecutive year, have

contributed to the effort to revitalize the economy of the region.

Looking to the future, the region continues to be attractive to
business because of its proximity to and quick access to major markets;

a superior labor force; the existence of a major research park;
educational, recreational and cultural facilities;

and the overall quality of life.
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MiCRUS Locates and Expands Qperations
In the Hudson Valley Research Park
The leading tenant of the Hudson Valley Research Park is MiCRUS,

which is a joint venture between IBM Microelectronics and Cirrus Logic, Inc., of California.
MiCRUS was created in 1994 when IBM and Cirrus jointly provided $500 million, in addNon
to a $300 million base, for new equipment and facilities in the Research Park, which is

located in Southern Dutchess County. The wafer manufacturing operation began with
400 employees in January 1995 and expanded to 900 employees by the end of the year.
Central Hudson worked closely with MiCRUS in designing energy efficiency systems, which
enabled MiCRUS to qualify for a Central Hudson rebate of $540,000. MiCRUS also
qualified for our Economic Incentive Growth Rate, which provides discounts for electric
service for ten years. Our Economic Development programs - including incentive electric
rates and energy efficiency services - are helping MiCRUS be competitive in a global
economy.
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We Provide Energy Solutions
to Help Create and Retain Jobs and
to Develop Marketing Opportunities

"Energy Solutions" is a Central Hudson initiative we offer to commercial
and industrial customers to help them improve their competitiveness.

This helps strengthen the economy of the Mid-Hudson Valley and
increases our capacity to market our products and services.

Our Energy Solutions program consists of plant surveys,
energy analyses, discount electric rates, design services,

financing programs and technical assistance.

During 1995, more than 875 commercial and
industrial customers participated in our Energy Solutions program.

We look at this program as a partnership between Central Hudson
and our customers through which we help them

operate more efficiently and increase productivity.

For many customers, the cornerstone of this program is an energy audit
and a "competitiveness" analysis of their facility. Emphasis is

placed on improving efficiency and productivity and
reducing impacts on the environment.

Another imporlant feature of our Energy Solutions program is

competitive pricing. In addition to offering the lowest average electric
prices among all of the investor-owned electric companies

sewing New York State, we offer an Economic Growth Incentive Rate
and an Economic Revitalization Rate. Both rates provide discounts

for electric service for customers who meet certain requirements.

When considering the Energy Solutions program
in its entirety, it represents a major commitment by Central Hudson

to help create and retain jobs in the Mid-Hudson Valley.
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Energy Solutions Developed for
Manufacturer ofCustom-Desi gned Knives
The knife and box were made by Imperial Schrade not only to help feature
Central Hudson's Energy Solutions program but to illustrate its ability to customize its

cutlery products to meet the needs of its customers.
Imperial Schrade, which has about 600 employees at its Ellenville plant in Ulster County,
has been making superior quality pocket and hunting knives since 1904. Producing a
three-blade knife involves more than 100 operations, many of which are performed by
hand by skilled craftsmen. As part of its participation in our Energy Solutions program,
Imperial Schrade received a number of recommendations which would improve the
efficiency of its manufacturing processes, including electric heat treating, which requires
precise temperature control. Operating efficiency has a high prioNy at Imperial Schrade,
and our Energy Solutions program is assisting this customer in improving its

competiTiveness.
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We'e Shouting Customers Hollo to Let the
Earth Do the Heating...and the Cooling Too

Educating customers about the economics of highly efficient
and environmentally compatible heating and cooling technologies

is a major on-going activity at Central Hudson,

Specifically, we have been focusing on geothermal heat pumps,
which we market as "GeoSystem" technology. These heat pumps,

which take advantage of the earth's natural below-ground temperature
to heat in the winter and cool in the summer, are extremely competitive

for both residential and commercial new construction markets.

Add-on heat pumps also are being marketed for year-round comfort
and value. As an incentive during 1995, we offered customers 5,500 miles

from American Airlines AAdvantage travel awards program
for installing a heat pump. This innovative marketing approach

received recognition in national business publications.

We also are marketing outdoor lighting and a lighting
design service for homes and businesses or for any location

where there is a desire to enhance visibility,attractiveness, safety or security.

A leasing program for electric water heaters
is being promoted for a low monthly fee which entitles

the customer to installation, service and repairs for the life of the unit.

Looking to the future, we willcontinue to develop marketing
partnerships and strategic alliances to enhance shareholder

and customer value and strengthen our competitive advantage.
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Geothermal Heat Pumps Provide Effzcient,
Economical Year-Round Comfort Conditioning

An autumn snow squall dusted the mountaintop overlooking the Ashokan Reservoir
in Ulster.County. The owner of this custom-built house selected a geothermal heat pump
to provide year-round comfort conditioning. Central Hudson has been marketing this
advanced technology as 'GeoSystem - the most efficient home energy system on

earlh.'n

the foreground, flexible piping is extended vertically in well holes in the trench. Once
the piping is connected to the house, the heat pump circulates a liquid in the closed
loop system to extract heat from the earth and transfer it to the house. In the summer,
the heat pump moves heat to the household water heater, and the excess heat is

transferred below ground where it is absorbed by the earth. The result is domestic water
heating and central air conditioning. GeoSystem represents another Energy Solution
being offered by Central Hudson to meet the needs of its customers.
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We Are Making Greater Use
ofOur ExistingAssets In Innouati Ue Ways

to Enhance Our Competitive Position

Innovation characterized two developments
during 1995 which illustrate the far-reaching changes

which are taking place in the utilityindustry.

First, we entered into contracts during the year for energy exchanges.
That is, energy marketing firms supplied us with natural gas which we used

to generate electricily. We made the electricity available
to the energy marketers, who sold it elsewhere.

These transactions enabled Central Hudson to improve the utilizalion
of both gas transmission and electric generating capacity

to increase revenue and offset operating and maintenance expenses.
Such opportunNes help us to control the price of electricity and

natural gas and enhance our competNve posNon.

The second development further improved
an underutilized asset: available capacily in a natural gas pipeline.

We entered into a five-year agreement with a New England utilityfor the
transportation of natural gas to the utilitythrough a pipeline

reserved for our use. In this case, the payment we receive
is being used to reduce charges to our gas customers.

We continue to explore other ways to increase the use of our existing
assets in order to strengthen our competitive posNon and

provide benefits to our customers.
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Maximizing
Assets In the

Mid-Hudson Valley
The availability of electric generating

capacity at the Danskammer Plant,
shown surrounded by autumn foliage,

made it possible for Central Hudson
to participate in external power
marketing during 1995. Through

agreements with energy marketers,
we burned natural gas supplied by the

marketers to generate electricity at
Danskamrner. The marketers then sold

the electricity in open markets. Through
this energy exchange - natural gas

for electricity - we were able to
maximize our Production assets and

increase our revenues.

»
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Moving
Natural Gas
to Boston
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Increased utilization of a natural gas
asset was initiated during 1995 when
we entered into a five-year
agreement with the Boston Edison

Company to make pipeline capacity
available to the New England utilityfor
the transportation of natural gas to its

New Boston Station, shown to the left.
Revenue received from Boston Edison
is being used to help offset the cost of
supplying natural gas to our own
customers. We are continually
exploring opportunities to increase the
utilization of our available assets.
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Board QfDirectors

C

�+g
~ To mark the 50th anniversary of Central Hudson's common stock listing

on the New York Stock Exchange, the Board of Directors held its
' October meeting at the Exchange's headquarters, which was the

setting for the group photograph.

Front row, from left: Heinz K. Fridrich; Richard H. Eyman; John E. Mack, III,

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; Howard C. St.John, Vice Chairman; and Jack Effron.

Back row, from left: Edward P. Swyer; Charles LaForge; Paul J. Ganci, President and Chief
Operating Officer; Edward F. X.Gallagher; and L Wallace Cross. Frances D. Fergusson
was unavailable for the photograph.,

C

r

Richard H. Eyman

Two Directors, each ofwhom has provided outstanding service to the
Board of Directors, willnot be standing for re-election at the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders on April2, 1996.

Richard H. Eyman joined the Board in 1984. During his twelve years of
service, he served on various Committees of the Board and Chaired
the Committee on Audit.

Howard C St. John

Howard C. St. John became a Director in 1984. His principal
responsibilmes have been as Chairman of the Finance Committee
and as Vice Chairman of the Board, a position he has held since 1987.

The Company takes great pride in the contributions of both Directors
during a critical period in the history of Central Hudson.
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Corporate &Stock Information

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of

holders of common Cock
willbe held on Tuesday,
April2, 1996 at 10:30 a.m. at
the Corporation's General
Offices, 284 South Avenue,
Poughkeepsie, New York.

The Management
welcomes the personal
attendance ofshare-
holders at this meeting.
Asummaiyreportof the
meeting willbe mailed to all
shareholders of record at a
later date.

Financial and
Statistical Report

A comprehensive ten-
year financial and statisiical
supplement to this Annual
Report willbe available to
shareholders attending the
Annual Meeting. Copies
may also be obtainedby
wrNng or calling Steven V.
Lant, Treasurer and Assistant
Secretary,284 South Avenue,
Poughkeepsie, N.Y. 12601;
telephone (914) 49&5254.

Shareholder Information
First Chicago Trust

Company of New York;
telephone (800) 428-9578
between 9 a.rn. and 5 p.m.
weekdays.

Security Analysts and
Institutional Investors

Steven V. Lant, Treasurer
and Assistant Secretary;
telephone (914) 49&5254.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Central Hudson offers a

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
under which all holders of
common stock may
reinvest dividends and/or
make direct cash
investments to obtain
additional shares. All
brokerage and other fees
to acquire shares are paid
by the Corporation. To
participate, call Janet M.
Horvat, Director of Risk
Management &
Shareholder Relations, at
(914) 486-5204 or First
Chicago Trust Company of
New Yorkat (800) 428-9578.

Stock Exchange Ustings
Common: New VokStock

E'exchange

Stock Trading Symbol:
CNH

MultipleCopies of this
Annual Report

Shareholders who
receive multiple copies of
this Annual Report may, if
they choose, reduce the
number received by
calling First Chicago Trust
Company of New York at
(800) 428-9578.

General Counsel
Gould &Wilkie
One Chase Manhattan Plaza
New York, N.Y. 10005

Independent Accountants
Price Waterhouse
1177 Avenue of the Americas
New York, N.Y. 10036

Annual Report to the SEC;
Form 10-K

Shareholders may obtain
without charge a copy of
Central Hudson's annual
report to the SecurNes and
Exchange Commission, on
Form 10-K, by wrNng or
calling Ellen Ahearn,
Secretary,284 South
Avenue, Poughkeepsie, N.Y.,
12601; telephone (914) 486-
5757. The copy provided will
be withoutexhibits; these
may be purchased fora
specified fee.

Transfer Agent &
Registrar, Common
and Preferred Stock

First Chicago Trust
Company of New York, P.O.
Box 2550, Jersey City, N.J.
07303-2550. Keepirrg7rm customer/rr Focrrs

Common Stock
Market Price and Dividends Paid Per Share

B ~~~ mq R ~~
1st Quarter $27'/, $26 $ .52 $30'/, $27'/, $ .515

2rd Quarter 27 r/~ 25 r/~ 52 29% 25% 515

3rd Quarter 30 '/2 26 '/4 .525 27 /8 23 .52

4th Quarter 31 '/, 29% .525 26 '/, 22'/, .52
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FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE: (PAGE 26)
Earnings per share of common stock were $2.74

in 1995 compared to S2.68 in 1994. This $ .06 or 2%
increase in earnings per share resulted primarily from
decreased operation and maintenance costs,
decreased interest expense and a gain from the
sale of long-term stock investments. Partially
offsetting these increases in earnings in 1995 were
decreases in electric and gas net operating rev-
enues due to decreased sales attributable largely
to the warmer winter weather experienced in the
first quarter of 1995 and decreased sales to IBM.

DIVIDENDSPER SHARE: (PAGE 30)
The quarterly dividend rate was increased to

$ .525 per share, effective June 23, 1995. This repre-
sented an increase of 1% over the previous quarterly
rate of $ .52 per share. Dividends paid to sharehold-
ers in 1995 were $2.09 per share as compared to
$2.07 per share in 1994. No portion of the 1995 divi-
dend constitutes a return of capital.

ECONOMY:
The past year proved to be a period of growth

and recovery for the Company's service area. The
Company's economic development efforts
coupled with State and local government efforts
helped to attract over 4%0 valuewdded Jobs
throughout the region since the spring of 1993.
Included in these valu~dded Jobs are 900 posi-
tions brought to the area in the last two years by a
semi-conductor manufacturing company.

ELECTRIC SALES: (PAGE 27)
~ Sales of electricity within the Company's service

territory decreased 2% in 1995. Sales of electricity to
residential customers decreased 2% due to a
decrease in usage per customer. Commercial sales
increased 1% resulting from the net effect of a 2%

. increase in the number of customers and a 1%

decrease in usage per customer. Electric sales to
industrial customers decreased 6% due pnmarily to
an 18% decline in usage by IBM.

GAS SALES: (PAGE 27)
Firm sales of natural gas decreased 5% in 1995.

Sales of gas to residential customers decreased 10%

due to a decrease in usage per customer. Corn-
mercial sales decreased 1% due largely to a
decrease in usage per customer. Firm gas sales to
industrial customers remained stable when com-
pared to 1994. When normalized for effects of
weather, firm gas sales increased 3% in 1995.

interruptible gas sales increased 70% due to a
significant increase in the boiler gas usage at the
Company's fossil-fueled generating plants.

RATE PROCEEDING - ELECTRIC: (PAGE 25)
The Company has no pending electric rate

case filed with the Public Service Commission (PSC)
and cannot predict with certainty the date of its

next filing.
The last rate increase was Issued and effective

February 11, 1994 which increased base rates by
$5.133 million (or approximately 1.3% on an annual
basis), based on a 10.6% return on common equity,
and an 8.58% return on total invested capital.

RATE PROCEEDING - GAS: (PAGE 25)
The Company filed a request with the PSC on

November 10, 1995 to increase its base rates for firm
natural gas. The request, ifaccepted by the PSC,
would effectively produce a net increase in firm gas
revenues of $2.422 million, an 11.50% return on
common equity and a 9.22% return on total
invested capital. The Company can make no
prediction as to what further action the PSC will
take on this gas rate increase request.

COMMONSTOCK: (NOTE 5)
Issuances under the Automatic DMdend

Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and
Customer Stock Purchase Plan Increased the
number of common shares outstanding by 257%7
shares to a total of 17A96,051 as of December 31,
1995. At the end of 1995, a share of common stock
was selling at $30.875 while the book value per
share was $25.96.

FINANCINGPROGRAM: (NOTES 5 db 6)
On October 1, 1995, the Company optionally

redeemed all of its outstanding 7A4% Cumulative
Preferred Stock at a price of $ 101.22 per share. The
associated cash requirements were financed from
internal funds and from net proceeds of $7.0 million
realized from the Issuance of 257%7 shares of
common stock in 1995 through the Company's
Automatic DMdend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan and its Customer Stock Purchase
Plan.

TAXES: (PAGE 29)
In 1995, the Company incurred $95.7 millionfor

operating taxes levied by federal, state and local
governments, representing 19 cents of every dollar
ofrevenues.
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PIPE YEARSIIMMAEYQP QQNSQIIDATEQ QPEEATIQNS
AI%3 SELECTED FINANCIALDATA~
ghousands of Dollars)

32K 39K J9K 32i2 32il
Operating Revenues

Electric $ 409,445 $ 411,082 $ 422,925 $ 427A36 $ 424,121
Gas . 102,770 104586 94A48 96,121 70,615

Total . 512,215 515,6M 517373 523&7 494,736

Operating Expenses
Operations.
Maintenance.
Depreciation and amortization .........
Taxes, other than income tax .... ~ ~, ~ ~...

Federal income tax .................... ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

Total.

274,665
29,440
41,467
66,709
29 040

274A97
32,716
40,380
66,899
28,043

274A77
34A86
39,682
65,564
28,603

283,787
34,226
39,596
66,339
25,111

267,339
31~
37,230
60,554
22,613

441,321 442535 442,812 449,059 419,240

Operating Income .. 70 894 73 133 ~74 ~74 98 ~75 96

Other Income and Deductions
Allowance for equity funds

used during construction ... ~ .. ~ . ~ ~ .. ~

Federal income tax ............................
Other - net

Total ~ ....................

986
353

8 886
10,225

866
1,237
6,296
8,399

934
1 A45
5,167
7546

596
748

4A27
5,771

921
1,252

854
3,027

Interest Charges.

Net Income .

Premium on Prefefred Stock Redemption- Net .

Dividends Declared on
Cumulative Preferred Stock .........~.....

Income Available for Common Stock .....
Dividends Declared an Common Stock ..

Amount Retained in the Business ........ ~ . ~ ..

Retained Earnings - beginning of year ....
Retained Earnings - end of year .............

28 397

52,722
169

4,903
47,650
36,459
11,191
79,284
90,475

Income before Interest Charges ........ ~ ~ . ~ ~ . 81,119 81,532

30,603

50,929

82,107

31,717

50390

5,127 5562
45,802
35&1

44,828
34A97
10,331

58,692
10261
69,023

S 79,284 S 69,023

32581

47,688

35,582

42,941

5,544
42,144
31545
10499
48,093

S 58,692

5,659
37282
29,800

7A82
40411

S 48,093

80269 78523

Common Stock
Average shares outstariding (000s) ...
Earnings per share on

average shares outstanding .......
Dividends declared per share ~..........
Book value per share (at year-end) ~ ~

17,380

$2.74
$2.095
$25.96

17,102

$2.68
$2.075
$25.34

16,725

$2.68
$2.045
$24.65

15,901

$2.65
$ 1.98

$23.M

15530

$2.40
S1.90

$22.84

Total Assets ...... ~ .. ~ .. ~, ~ ~ ~ . ~ .

Long-term Debt.
Cumulative Preferred Stock ............... ~ .. ~ . ~

Common Equity .

$ 1,250,092 $ 1,250,781 $ 1,264240 $ 1,167,124 $ 1,141,128
389,245 389~ 391,810 441,096 416,030

56,030 81,030 81,030 81,030 81,030
454,239 436,731 417,846 378214 360,203

lhls summaryshould be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto Included In
the Financial Section of this Annual Report.
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1VIA1NAGEMENT'SDISCUSSIIOINAI%3ANALYSISIDIF
FINANCIALCIOINDITIGNANDRESULTS 10IF OPERATIIOINS

COMPETITION

GENERAL

The Company is subject to regulation by the
Public Service Commission of the State of New York
(PSC) and by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Comrnlsslon (FERC). As a result, the Company is

substantially free from direct competition at the
retail level, at this time. The enactment of the
Energy Policy Act of 1992 and the FERC's rules
providing open-access to interstate gas pipelines,
as well as federal and state proposals to introduce
competition to the utilitymarket, willexpose the
electric and gas Industry to additional risks and
uncertainties. The Introduction of increased
competition and related regulatory and legislative
requirements may unfavorably impact the posltion-
of a utilityas a franchised monopoly. The Com-
pany cannot predict the scope, timing and
consequences of these changes; however, such
changes could result in a write-offof utilityassets.
See the followingsubcaptlon entitled "Continuing
Applicabilityof SFAS No. 71."

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

FERC Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (NOPR)
On March 29, 1995, FERC Issued a NOPR on generic
requirements for electric transmission tariffs. FERC

proposes to require all jurisdictional utilitfes (includ-
Ing the Company) to offer comparable service,
open-access transmission tariffs for network and
point-to-point service. Such utilities would also be
required to take transmission service under the
same tariffs and each ancillary service they offer In
their rates and to effect functional unbundling of
their transmission operations. Included with the
open-access NOPR Is a supplementary NOPR on
stranded costs, in which FERC endorses the prin-
ciple of stranded cost recovery. Stranded costs are
prudently Incurred utilitycosts which would be
recoverable under the current'system of regulation,
but which mIght not be recoverable In a more
competitive electric industry environment.

New York - Electric
Competitive Opportunities Proceeding: In

1993, the PSC initiated a proceeding to address
numerous issues related to competition In the
electric energy markets in New York State. Two
phases of this proceeding have been established
to address the issues to be considered.

Phase I of such proceeding, which was com-
pleted in the Summer of 1994, resulted In the
approval by the PSC of "flexible rates" that would
allow electric utilitycompanies to negotiate
IndMdual contracts with certain large industrial and

commercial customers to provide electrfcity at
prices lower than currenffy offered.

Phase II of such proceeding, which Is now
underway, has an overall objective of Identifying
regulatory and rat~aking practices that willassist
in the transition to a more competitive electric
industry designed to increase efficiency in the
provision of electricity while maintaining safety,
environmental, affordability and service priority
goals. Issues related to both wholesale and retail
competition also are being exdrnined in Phase II of
this proceeding.

By Opinion and Order. Issued and effective
June 7, 1995, the PSC adopted principles to guide
the transition to competition whIch included a
reasonable opportunity to recover stranded
investments and called for further investigation of
whether vertically integrated utilitycorporate
structures would impede or obstruct development
of effecffve wholesale or retail competition. The
PSC next directed a review of certain alternative
models for competition within New YorkState'
electric industry. The parties to such proceeding
fi!ed their comments with the PSC, Including the
following:

The Energy Association of New York State
(Energy Association), which Is a group comprised
of the eight major Investor-owned gas and electric
utilities serving New York State (including the
Company), recommended a wholesale poolco
model. The key elements of this model Include,
among others, the followingwhich assumes full
recovery of stranded costs:

(i) setting up an unregulated market
for competitively selling wholesale bulk
power into a pool. regardless of
whether that power Is provided by
Investor-owned utilities, no~flity
generators, power marketers, coop-
eratives or on-site generators and

(Ii)creating an Independent System
Operator to direct the operation of
the State's transmission system so that
bulk power willbe delivered safely
and reliably.

The New YorkState Power Authority (NYPA)
recommended a retail bilateral contract model
under which all customers would have the choice
to select their electricity suppliers according to
individuallynegotiated arrangements. The bilat-
eral model supported by NYPA Staff would
Incorporate a power exchange that would
accommodate the development of a spot market
and a single transmission system operator that
would have the ultimate responsibility for the
reliable operation of the system. NYPA recom-
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mended that it assume the role of the single owner
and operator of the bulk power transmission system
in New York State.

The Staff of the PSC filed a recommendation for
a flexible poolco model of competition that
provides a fullrange of competitive alternatives,
including retail and wholesale competition, market-
clearlng spot prices for electricity purchases and
physical bilateral contracts. The PSC Staff model
includes divestiture of utilitygeneration assets .-

through sale or spin-off. The PSC Staff proposed
that shareholders absorb a portion of stranded
costs. The Staff's plan calls for testing the new
market structure in the wholesale market in late
1997 and beginning the transition to a competitive
retail market by early 1998.

On December 21, 1995, the Administrative Law
Judge and the Deputy Director, Energy and Water
Division of the Department of Public Service issued
a recommended decision in Phase II. In summary,
this decision recommended that the PSC adopt a
transitional plan leading to a flexible retail poolco
model. The first stage would be a wholesale
pooico model with an independent system opera-
tor and market mechanisms to allow an orderly
movement to full retail access. Under their recom-
mended decision, reliabilityof the bulk power
system is recognized to be crttical and should not
be compromised to achieve lower prices from retail
access. Stranded costs woutd be recovered by
non-bypassable access charges or wire charges,
and must be determined to be prudent, verifiable
and non-mitigable. A utilitywould be entitted to
present a case as to why itwould be reasonable to
allow recovery of Its stranded costs, subject to
allowing consumers a reasonable opportunity to
realize savings and receive reasonable prices; thus,
a careful balance of interest and expectations is

required and may vary utilityby utility. Utilities would
be required to Individuallyfile for PSC approval,
within six months of the PSC's order, a long-term
proposal addressing, among other things, 0)
recoverable stranded costs, (ii) the separatton of
generation from transmission and distribution, either
functionally, structurally or by divestiture. (iii)phasing
in retail access for all customers, and (iv) the utility's
proposed relationship with an Independent system
operator.

The Company Is considering the impact the
recommended decision would have on Its business
and can make no prediction as to what action the
PSC willtake with respect to Phase II, except that if
the PSC were to adopt the stranded cost recom-
mendatlons ln such decision, the Company's ability
to recover its plant costs and regulatory assets in
rates would be at risk. Action by the PSC Is ex-
pected by July 1, 1996.

Niagara Mohawk Proposal: On October 6,
1995, as publicly reported by Niagara Mohawk

Power Corporation (Niagara Mohawk). Niagara
Mohawk filed a proposal with the PSC which
provides for a corporate restructuring designed to
create an open, competitive retail electricity
market, deregulate electricity generation in Nia-
gara Mohawk's service area, allow its customers, by
year 2000, to choose their electricity supplier and
freeze or reduce electricity prices over the next five
years. The restructuring would place Niagara
Mohawk's power plants (which would include
Niagara Mohawk's interest in the Nine Mite 2 Plant
and Niagara Mohawk's interest in the Roseton
Plant) and unregulated generator contracts in a
separate generating company. with the remaining
business being separated into a holding company
with regulated subsidiaries that would transmit and
distribute electricity and natural gas and supply
energy services to core customers. This holding
company would also have unregulated subsidiaries
that would engage in marketing, brokering and
service activities. In addition, Niagara Mohawk also
put forth in Its proposal a request for "relief from
overpriced unregulated generator contracts that
were mandated by public policy." In its proposal,
Niagara Mohawk indicated that if It were unable to
negotiate new contracts with unregulated genera-
tors, Niagara Mohawk would propose to take
possession of the unregulated generator projects
and compensate their owners through Niagara
Mohawk's power of eminent domain. Niagara
Mohawk would then resell the projects, allowing the
projects to sell electricity into the competitive pool
at market prices. Niagara Mohawk has tndicated
that Its proposals are offered as an tntegrated
package, and not piecemeal.

Niagara Mohawk has stated that If It appears
that such a proposal were unachteveable, Niagara
Mohawk could not rule out the possibility of a
restructuring under Chapter 11 of the United States
Bankruptcy Code.

The Company has intervened in the proceed-
Ing but cannot predict whether Niagara Mohawk's
proposal willbe effected or, if effected, what
Impact, Ifany, Niagara Mohawk's proposal would
have on the gas and electrtc utilitybusiness in New
YorkState, Including the Company's franchise area,
or what effect Niagara Mohawk's proposal and/or
a restructuring under Chapter 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code would have on the
Company's interest in the Nine Mile 2 Plant or the
Company's Interest in the Roseton Plant.

New York - Natural Gas
ln October 1993, the PSC Initiated a proceed-

Ing to address Issues associated with the
restructuring of the emerging competitive natural
gas market, a process which had been set in
motion by Order 636 of FERC, which requires
pipeline gas suppliers to separate natural gas sales
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service from transportation and storage service,
and which allows Local Distribution Companies
(LDCs), such as the Company and other end users.
open access to the interstate pipeline system for
the purpose of transporting their gas from gas
producing areas to the customer. This PSC pro-
ceeding examined such issues to determine how
best to implement changes in the services provided
by the LDCs'egment of the gas Industiy, so that
the benefits of the increased competition fostered
by federal actions are fullyrealized by customers.
By Opinion and Order, issued and effective Decem-
ber 20, 1994, the PSC set forth the policy framework
to guide the transition of New York's gas distribution
Industry in the post-FERC Order 636 environment.
Such PSC Order essentially extends a number of the
FERC "unbundling" concepts, found in said Order
636 to the retail gas business. In compliance with
such Order, the Company and other LDCs filed
proposed open-access compliance tariffs with the
PSC on November 9, 1995. At this time, the Com-
pany can make no prediction as to whether or
when the PSC willtake action on these filings.

Mergers ln the Electric Industry
In response to the increasingly competitive

environment, utilities across the country have been
reorganizing to better position themselves finan-
cially and temtorlally for the future. Thus, mergers
and possible mergers have been reported In
business publications throughout the past year. The
Company cannot predict at this time what effect
these mergers or future mergers willhave on the
utilityindustry in New York State.

CONTINUINGAPPLICABILITYOF SFAS NO. 71

The Company's electric and gas rates, cur-
rently sub]ect to approval by the PSC, are designed
to recover the Company's costs of providing
electric and gas services to its customers. A primary
difference between a rate regulated entity and an
unregulated entity is the timing of recognizing
certain assets and expenses for financial reporting
purposes. The Statement of Financial Accounting
Qandards No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation (SFAS No. 71), pre-
scribes the method to be used to record the
financial transactions of a regulated entity. Ifthe
Company were to determine that Its business fails to
meet the criteria of SFAS No. 71, Itwould have to
eliminate from Its financial statements ail transac-
tions prescribed by the regulators that would not
have been recognized if it had been a non-
regulated company which could result in a
write<own or write-offof utilityassets. Currently,
such transactions are included In the Company's
consolidated financial statements as regulatory
assets and liabilities, as described In Note 1 of the

Notes to the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 1995
(Notes). An unfavorable impact on the financial
results of the Company would occur ifthe Com-
pany determined that it could no longer apply SFAS
No. 71. The Company believes, however, that it
meets the criteria for operating as a rate regulated
entity, as prescribedby SFAS No. 71, at this time, but
cannot predict whether Itwillcontinue to meet
such criteria, in whole or in part, in the future.

COMPANY'S RESPONSE

Currently, the Company ls the lowest cost
electric provider ln New York State and, through
strategies and cost-reduction measures such as
those described below, willstrive to remain in that
position.

The Company's goal is to be the energy
supplier of competitive choice to its customers. In
order to achieve this goal, the Company has
implemented. and willcontinue to Implement
appropriate cost-reduction measures. Measures
which have been put into place to Improve the
Company's position in a competitive marketplace
Include: the operation of certain of Its generating
units on alternating six-month Intervals and/or the
placement of certain of Its generating units on
ready reserve; satisfying a portion of its power

requirements with purchased power from energy
providers outside the Company's service territory at
a lower cost than ifsuch power were generated by
the Company; reduction of contractor costs by
redeploying its own workforce; redeeming or
refinancing debt or preferred stock at lower Interest
rates; and a continued reduction of Its workforce
through attrition.

Due to the rapid change In the utilityIndustry.
the Company has considered and willcontinue to
consider various strategies designed to enhance Its

competitive position and to adapt to anticipated
changes in its business. In November of 1995, the
Company entered Into a five-year agreement with
the Boston Edison Company to transport natural gas
to one of the electric generating plants of the
Massachusetts-based utilityfor a demand charge.
The demand charge being received for this service
willresult in an estimated 4% savings to our natural
gas customers. Another strategy implemented to
prepare the Company for future changes In the
industry is capacity brokerlng. LDCs, such as the
Company, are permitted to offer their unutilized firm
transportation service to others for a fee. This

program, which was used at various times In 1995
and 1994, gives the Company an opportunity to
defray some or all of the monthly fixed charges
when its firm gas transportation capacity Is not fully
utilized and, as a result, reduces the costs billed to
the Company's firm gas customers.
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CAPITALRESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM
As shown in the Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows, the cash expenditures related to the
Company's construction program amounted to
$49.3 million in 1995, a S7.9 million decrease from the
S57.2 millionexpended in 1994. As shown fn the
table below, cash construction expenditures for
1996 are estimated to be S61.3 million,an increase
of $ 12.0 millioncompared to 1995 expenditures.
Internal sources funded 1(XKof the 1995 cash
construction expenditures and are presently

estimated to fund 10P%%d of the forecasted cash
construction expenditures for 1996.

In 1996. the Company expects to fund any
external funding requirements through Issuances of
common stock pursuant to its Automatic Dividend
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and Its

Customer Stock Purchase Plan and by issuing
additional debt securities.

Estimates of construction expenditures, internal
funds available, mandatory and optional redemp-
tion of long-term securities, and working capital
requirements for the five-year period 1996-2000 are
set forth by year in the following table:

32K 3222
(ihousonds ot Donors)

Total
322k2KQ

Construction Expenditures ':
Electric
Gas .........

Nuclear fuel ..............................

Total .

$39%0
7~
9500
5300

61~

$36A00
7,700
8,200

52~

$42,900
7,900
8A00
5,800

65,000

$36%0
8,200
8go)

53%0

S39,100
8~
7gG)
5,900

61,100

S 194,100
3945
42%0
17%0

293@5

Internal Funds Available: 64,%$ 55g($ 56g6) 59,800 62,100 299@6

Excess of Construction
Expenditures over Internal Funds (3')) (3~) 8A00 (6%0) (1,000) (6900)

Mandatory Redemption of
Long-term Securities:
Long-term debt ................. 100 20,100 35,100 55A00

Optional Redemption of Long-term
Securities:
Long-term debt ................~.... ~ ..
Preferred Sock ........................

Working Capital Requirements ...

30QS
13,000

(2,%$)

Total Cash Requirements .............. $36500

3QN

S (200)

3%0 3000

S11 $00 $ 164$

3QS

$37,100

30@00
13,000

9,100

S101 ~
Excluding the equity portion ofAllowance forFunds Used During Construction (AFDC), a noncash item.

Estimates of construction expenditures are
subJect to continuous review and adjustment, and
actual expenditures may vary from such estimates.
These construction expenditures include capitalized
overheads, nuclear fuel and the debt portion of
AFDC.

included in the construction expenditures are
expenditures which are required to comply with the
Clean AirActAmendments of 1990. The Company
estimates such required expenditures willcost
approxlmateiy S6.1 million. A discussion of the Clean
AirActAmendments is Included fn Note 8 of the

Notes under the caption entitled Environmental
Matters - Clean AfrActAmendments."

As shown in the table above, it Is presently
estimated that funds available from internal sources
willfinance 100% of the Company's cash construc-
tion expenditures for the five-year period 1996-2000.
During thIs same five-year period, total external
financing requirements are projected to amount to
S101.5 million,ofwhIch S55.4 million Is related to the
mandatory redemption of long-term securities and
S43.0 million Is related to the optional redemption of
long-term securities.
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CAPITALSTRUCTURE

Over the past few years, the Company has
substantially increased its common equity ratio
through retention of a portion of its earnings, offerings
of its common stock to the public, issuances of its
common stock under Its Automatic DMdend
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan and its
Customer Stock Purchase Plan and redemption of
debt and preferred stock. One result of these recent
increases in Its common equity ratio has been a
significant Improvement in its interest coverage ratios
(as shown under Financial Indices on page 30 of
this Report) which have also been improved by the
refinancing of a portion of its debt at lower interest
rates. Despite a tightening of bond rating criteria
applied to the electric utilityindustry, the Company
has maintained Its bond ratings since 1991. The
Company's bond ratings, which were recently
reaffirmed during 1995, are A- or equivalent by
Standard & Poor's Corporation, Moody's Investors
Service, Inc. and Duff&Phelps Credit Rating Co.,
and "A"by Fitch Investors Service. Standard &Poor's
Corporation has revised Its outlook on the Company
from "stable to "positive" in August 1995, citing the
Company's "expectation of sustainable and modest
financial Improvement based on gradual economic
growth and lower capital spending requirements."
The Company's long-term goal Is to achieve and
maintain bond ratings at the "A"level.

Set forth below is certain information with
respect to the Company's capital structure at the
end of 1995, 1994 and 1993:

Year-end Capital Structure

32K 1R4 liK
Long-term debt ........................ 42.8% 43.0% 47.0%

Short-term debt ..........~............. - .3

Preferred stock ......................... 7.5 8.9 8.6

Common equity ....................... 49.7 47.8 44.4

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

FINANCINGPROGRAM

On December 1, 1995, the Company paid in full
at maturity its 4.85% Promissory Notes. The S2.6 million
principal amount was funded through internal
sources.

The Company redeemed all of its outstanding
shares of 7A4% Cumulative Preferred Stock (par
value S100 per share) on October 1, 1995 at a
redemption price of S101.22 per share. The S12.1
million total redemption price paid and associated
costs were funded through internal sources and from
the Issuance of 257&7 additional shares of common
stock during 1995 through the Company's Automatic

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
and its Customer Stock Purchase Plan.

On September 1, 1994, the Company retired at
maturity Its 8 1/8% Series First Mortgage Bonds, of
which S50 millionprincipal amount was issued and
outstanding. The associated cash requirements
were financed from Internal funds and from the
issuance of 285317 additional shares of common
stock during 1994 through the Company's Auto-
matic DMdend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase
Plan and its Customer Stock Purchase Plan.

In 1993, the Company optionally redeemed two
series of First Mortgage Bonds totaling S40 millionand
two series of preferred stock totaling S34.2 million.
These securities were refunded with similar securities
bearing lower Interest or dividend rates. In March
1993, the Company Issued 700,000 additional shares
of common stock through a public offering. These
funds were used to reduce short-term debt out-
standing and to fund working capital requirements.

The Company optionally redeemed on January 1,
1996 all of Its outstanding shares of 7.72% Cumulative
Preferred Stock (par value S100 per share) at a
redemption price of S101.00 per share. The S13.1
million redemption price paid and associated costs
were funded through Internal sources. Financial
markets willcontinue to be monitored throughout
1996 by the Company for opportunities to refinance
debt or preferred stock at lower cost.

By an Order Issued and effective October 17,
1994, the PSC granted the Company authorization
to issue and sell through December 31, 1996 up to
an additional S80 millionof securities. This S80 million
can be composed of Medium Term Notes solely or a
combination of Medium Term Notes and up to S40
millionof Common Stock. For more information with
respect to such Order and the Company's financing
program in general, see Notes 5 and 6 of the Notes.

SHORT-TERM DEBT

As more fullydiscussed in Note 4 of the Notes,
the Company has a revolving credit agreement with
four commercial banks for borrowing up to S50.0
million through December 14, 1997. In addition, the
Company continues to maintain confirmed lines of
credit totaling S1.5 millionwith two regional banks.
Also, the Company has short-term credit agree-
ments with four commercial banks totaling S130.0
million in the aggregate. Such agreements give the
Company competitive options to minimize its cost of
short-term debt borrowing. Authorization from the
PSC limits the amount the Company may have
outstanding at any time under all of Its short-term
borrowing arrangements to S52.0 million In the
aggregate.
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RATE PROCEEDINGS

Electric: The Company has no pending electric
rate case filed with the PSC and cannot predict
with certainty the date of its next filing. The
Company's most recent electric rate case was filed
November 12, 1992 and, by Order Determining
Revenue Requirement and Rate Design issued and
effective February 11, 1994, the PSC permitted the
Company to increase its electric base rates by
S5.133 million (or approximately 1.3% on an annual
basis), based on a 10.6% return on common equity,
and an 8.58% return on total invested capital.

The Company's e!ectrlc fuel cost adjustment
clause also provides for a partial sharing of fuel cost
variations, pursuant to an incentive/penalty
formula. The PSC requires a sharing between the
customers and the Company of variations in actual
fuel costs from the forecasted amounts which have
been approved by the PSC for a specific twelve-
month period, whereby the Company bears 20X of
the first S10 millionofvariation and l(Kof the
second S10 millionofvariation. Anyvariations In
excess of S20 millionare credited or charged. as
appropriate, in total to the customers. In addition,
the Company credits to customers the net revenue
(gross revenue less Incremental costs, principally
fuel) from sales of electricity to other utilities after
adjusting foran 8(K/2P%%d sharing between custom-
ers and the Company, respectively, of any
variations from forecasted amounts which have
been approved by the PSC for a specific twelve-
month period. See subcaption Deferred Electric
Fuel Costs" of Note 1 of the Notes.

Gas: On November 10, 1995, the Company
filed a request with the PSC to increase its base
rates for firm natural gas service to produce a net
Increase in firm gas revenues of S2.422 millionbased
on proJected operations during the rate year
comprised of the period November 1, 1996 through
October 31, 1997. This would represent an overall
Increase in firm gas revenues of 3%%d.

The higher rates have been requested to cover
increases in capital and operating costs that are
projected for the rate year that are not adequately
provided for in present rates and willnot be pro-
vided for by increased sales.

In Its filing,the Company requested an 11.SP%%d

return on common equity and a 9.22% return on
total invested capital. It is not expected that any
new gas rates, which may result from this filing,will
become effective before October 1, 1996.

Based on the Company's proposed allocation
betw'een firm customer classes, the proposed
increase would be approximately 4.9% for residen-
tial customers and l.(Kfor commercial/industrial
customers. By Order issued and effective Decem-
ber 4. 1995, the PSC suspended the rate increase
through April7, 1996.

The Company can make no prediction as to
what further action the PSC willtake on its request,
including the amount of any gas rate increase
which may be authorized by the PSC.

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

Electric Sales to IBM:The Company's largest
customer Is international Business Machines Corpo-
ration (IBM),which accounted for approximately
1(%, 12% and 14%%d of the Company's total electric
revenues for the years ended December 31, 1995,
1994 and 1993, respectively. Published reports
indicate that IBMreduced its employment in the
Company's service territory by approximately 400
employees in 1995, 2AKO employees fn 1994 and
BA00 employees in 1993 to remain competitive in a
challenging marketplace. These reductions bring
the total number employed in the Company's
service territory to 10,100, as compared to the peak
level of IBMemployment in excess of 30@00 in 1985.
In 1995, IBMclosed its facilityin Kingston, New York
and relocated 1~ of its workers to its facilityin
Poughkeepsie, New York. Both facilities are in the
Company's service territory. During 1993. IBM
phased out its semiconductor manufacturing
operations at Its East Fishkill, New York facility,which
Is also in the Company's service territory. This
downsizing of IBM Is the main contributor to a
decline In 1995 of 18% In industrial electric sales. This
is in addition to the 1994 and 1993 declines ln
electric sales to IBMof 17%%d and ZP%%d, respectively.

New Accounting Standards: The Company Is

currently reviewing the accounting implications of
SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the impairment of
Long-Uved Assets and for Long-Uved Assets To Be
Disposed Of, which is effective for Its 1996 financial
statements. As discussed in more detail in Note 1 of
the Notes, the Company does not expect that the
adoption of this standard willhave a material
Impact on the Company.

Environmental Issues: On an ongoing basis, the
Company assesses environmental Issues which
could Impact the Company and Its ratepayers.
Notes 1,2 and 8 of the Notes, discuss current
environmental Issues affecting the Company,
Including (i) the recent decommissioning study of
the Nine Mile 2 Plant, (ii) the Clean Water Act and
Clean AirActAmendments of 1990, which require
control of emisslons from fossil-fueled electric
generating units, (iii)asbestos litigation cases, and
(iv) a legal action filed in 1995 against the Com-
pany by the City of Newburgh, New York after that
City discovered allegedly hazardous coal-tar
material on Its property, In 1994, allegedly migrating
from a former manufactured gas plant facilityof
the Company located In Newburgh, New York.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The followingdiscussIon and analysis includes an
explanation of the significant changes ln revenues
and expenses when comparing 1995 to 1994 and
1994 to 1993. Additional information relating to
changes between these years is provided in the
Notes on pages 36 through 52 of this Report.

Average shares

outstanding (000s) ~......,.....

Earnings per share ..................

Return earned on common
equity per books'..............

325 lK4 329

17,380 17,102 16,725

$ 2.74 S 2.68 S 2.68

10.5% 10.7% 11.1%

Return on equity forregulatory purposes differs from
these ftgures.

Earnings per share in 1995 increased S.06 per
share over 1994 results primarily because of a
decrease in maintenance costs of the Company's
electric generating plants and gas distribution and
transmission system in 1995. A decrease in the
operation and maintenance costs associated with
the Nine Mile 2 Plant contributed to the total de-
crease In operation and maintenance costs as well.
Also contributing to the increase in 1995 earnings
was reduced Interest expense In 1995 resulting

EARNINGS

Earnings per share of common stock are shown
after provision for dividends on preferred stock and
are computed on the basis of the average number
of common shares outstanding during the year. The
number of common shares, the earnings per share
and the rate of return earned on average common
equity are as follows:

primarily from the 1994 retirement at maturity of
S50 million 8 1/8% Series First Mortgage Bonds,
increased earnings related to PSC incentive pro-
grams related to fuel costs and energy efficiency,
and an S,08 per share gain from the sale of long-term
stock investments in June and December 1995.

Partially offsetting these Increases to earnings
were significant decreases in electric and gas net
operating revenues attributable primarily to de-
creased sales from the warmer winter weather
experienced In the first quarter of 1995, as compared
to the same period of 1994, as well as decreased
sales to a large industrial customer (IBM)in 1995. The
earnings per share in 1995 were also unfavorably
impacted by increased depreciation expense on
the Company's plant and equipment, increased
properly taxes and an increase In the number of
shares of common stock outstanding.

ln 1994. earnings per share remained un-
changed from 1993, although earnings from normal
operations increased S.03 per share. Earnings In 1993
included a S.03 per share gain from the sale of long-
term stock investments. The S.03 per share increase

.In earnings from normal operations in 1994 was due
primarily to lower interest charges on the Company's
outstanding debt, resulting In large part from retire-
ment at maturity on September 1, 1994 of S50 million
principal amount of 8 1/8% Series First Mortgage
Bonds, the refinancing of high interest rate debt and
preferred stock In 1993, and increased gas net
operating revenues.

These 1994 increases were partially offset,
however, by reduced earnings from PSC incentive
programs related to fuel costs and energy efficiency
programs, decreased electric net operating rev-
enues attributable primarily to decreased sales to
large industrial customers, an Increase in the number
of shares of common stock outstanding, and
decreased earnings of non-regulated subsidiary
companies.

OPERATING REVENUES

Total operating revenues decreased S3.5 million (.7%) in 1995, as compared to 1994, and $ 1.7. million (.3%) in
1994, as compared to 1993.

See the table below for details of the variations:

1 4

Customer sales ...........~.............
Sales to other utilities.................
Increase in base rates ..............
Fuel cost adjustment ................
Deferred revenues ...................
Miscellaneous .....................,......

Total ........................

$ (7,711)
2,017

3,346
1,374
(663)

$ (1,637)

$ 4,779

(6,564)
21

~52>
$ (1,816)

Mal Ehchh
(rhousonds of Doiiors)

$ (2,932) S (6,105)
2,017 (831)

4,704
(3,218) (7&4)
1,395 (3A05)
(715) 1328

$ (3,453) S(11,843)

S 4,555

6,234
(881)
230

$ 10,138

S(1550)
(831)

4,704
(1300)

...'.-', ~
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SALES

Sales of electricity within the Company's service
territory decreased 2% and 3% in 1995 and 1994,
respectively. The decline in sales experienced in
1995 was primarily the result of unusual warm winter
weather experienced in the first quarter of 1995
when compared to the same period in 1994. This
1995 sales decrease was also impacted by the
continued declining usage by IBM. The decrease in
1994 sales largely occurred due to a decline in
usage by IBM,as described under the above
caption entitled "Other Developments.

Firm sales of natural gas decreased 5% in 1995
largely because of a decrease in usage by residen-
tial and commercial customers. In 1994, firm sales of
natural gas Increased 4% primarily due to an in-
crease in the usage by residential and commercial
customers. Changes in sales by major customer
classifIcation are set forth below:

% Increase
(Decrease)

Residential
Commercial
Industrial ~ ~ ~ ~

Electric
le% )924
(2) 1

1 3
(6) (13)

Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Gas
12K 32L4
(10) 3
(1) 7

(4)

Residential Electric Sales: Residential electric
sales are primarilyaffected by the growth in the
number of customers and the change fn kWh. usage
per customer. Customer usage is also sensitive to
weather. Changes in these components are set forth
in the table below:

% lncre'ase
(Decrease)

Commercial Electric Sales: The components of
the changes In commercial electric sales are set
forth In the table below:

% Increase

Industrial Electric Sales: In 1995, as compared to
1994, and 1994. as compared to 1993, industrial
electric sales decreased 6% and 13%, respectively,
due primarily to a decline in usage by a large
industrial customer (IBM)of 18% In 1995 and 16% in
1994.

Gas Sales - Firm: The following tables set forth
customer growth, changes In customer usage and
heating degree days for the residential and com-
mercial classifications. Changes in residential and
commercial gas sales are affected by weather
conditions.

% Increase
(Decrease)

Growth in number of customers .....
Change In average usage

per customer ...............................

J2K 3224

(10) 3

Growth in number of customers ....
Change in average usage

per customer ~.............................

12K 3224
3 2

(7) 5

Bimonthly billing cycle .........
Calendar year ......~...~...~......

1RHi 3224
(12) (1)
(4) (3)

32K J2B,
Growth in number of customers .. 2 1

Change in average usage
per customer ............................. (1) 2

Growth in number of customers ..
Change In average

usage per customer ................. (2) 1

The decreased customer usage in 1995 was
primarilydue to the warmer winter weather experi-
enced in the Company's service territory ln the first
quarter of 1995. Heating degree days were 22%
lower tn this quarter of 1995 than in the same quarter
in 1994. For the twelve months of 1995, heating
degree days decreased 12% when compared to the
results for the year 1994.

ln 1994, the Increased usage per customer was
largely attributable to hotter summer weather as
cooling degree days increased 10% over 1993.

Firm gas sales to Industrial customers for 1995
remained stable when compared to the prior year.
In 1994, firm gas sales to industrial customers de-
creased 4% primarily due to the shift of two large
industrial customers from firmservice to gas transpor-
tation service.

Gas Sales - Interruptible: Interruptible gas sales
increased 70% in 1995, as compared to 1994, and
33% tn 1994. as compared to 1993. The 1995 and
1994 increases were due primarily to the sale of
natural gas to the other cotenant owners of the
Roseton Plant for use as a boiler fuel.
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NUCLEAR OPERATIONS

The Company owns a 9% interest as one of the
five tenants-in-common of the Nine Mile 2 Plant,
which is discussed in Note 2 of the Notes under the
caption entitled Nine Mile 2 Plant." The operations
of this Plant have continued to improve. The actual
capacity factor of 76.5%%d for 1995 exceeded the
targeted capacity factor of 73.2Ã included in the
Company's electric fuel adjustment clause. The
actual cost of operation for 1995 was less than the
amounts provided in the Company's rates. Both of
these factors contributed to a favorable impact on
earnings. In 1994, the actual cost of operation
approximated the amount provided for in the rate-
making process.

The Company has continued to participate
actively on the management, operations and
accounting committees for the Nine Mile2 Plant and
expects to continue to do so in the future.

The Nine Mile 2 Plant is scheduled to commence
its fifthrefueling outage in September 1996, with a
targeted 37<ay duration.

Decommissioning of nuclear plants such as the
Nine Mile 2 Plant was an important part of the Energy
Policy Act of 1992. Through this act, the Uranium
Enrichment Decontamination and Decommissioning
Fund was established. For further information on this
enactment, refer to Note 2 of the Notes. With
respect to its Interest in the Nine Mile 2 Plant, the
Company based Its 1995 decommissioning cost
estimates on the decommissioning study completed
in 1989. As more fullydiscussed in Note 2 of the
Notes, a recent decommissioning study was corn-
pleted in December 1995. The Company believes
that decommissioning costs, if higher than currently
estimated, willultimately be recovered in the rate-
making process, although no such assurance can be
given.

SHARING ARRANGEMENTS

Pursuant to certain incentive formulas approved
by the PSC, the Company shares, with its customers,
certain revenues and/or cost savings exceeding
defined predetermined levels. These incentive
formulas, in some cases, include penalty provisions
for shortfalls from the targeted levels as well.

Incentive formulas are in place for fuel cost
variatlons, sales of electricity to other utilities and
interruptible gas sales.

The net effect of these Incentive formulas was to
Increase pretax earnings by S4.0, $2.1 and $2.0 million
during 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.

OPERATING EXPENSES

As a result of the Company's continuing efforts to
reduce costs of operation, the Company experi-
enced a significant reduction in its operating
expenses, especially in the operation and mainte-

nance costs of its generating and nuclear plants,
when comparing 1995 to 1994 results. Changes from
the prior year in the components of the Company's
operating expenses are listed below:

Increase or (Decrease)
from Prior Year

1995 1994
Amount % Amount

(Dotlats In Thousands)

(879) (6) 773 5

1335 2
4 (560) (2)

S (277)

The most significant elements of operating
expenses are fuel and purchased electricity in the
Company's electric department and purchased
natural gas fn the Company's gas department.
Approximately 28% In 1995 and 27L In 1994 of every
revenue dollar billed in the Company's electric
department was expended for the combined cost
of fuel used in electric generation and purchased
electricity. The corresponding figures In the
Company's gas department for the cost of pur-
chased gas were 61% and 58%, respectively.

In 1995, the combined cost of fuel used in
electric generation and purchased electricity
increased $ 1.3 million (1%) primarily due to a 1L
increase in total system sales which included sales to
other utilities. In 1994. the combined cost of fuel
used in electric generation and purchased electric-
Ity decreased S10.3 million (8L) resulting primarily
from lower per unit costs and decreased sales of
electricity.

In an effort to keep the cost of electricity at the
lowest reasonable level, the Company purchases
energy from other member companies of the New
York Power Pool, whenever such energy can be
purchased at a unit cost lower than the incremental
cost of generating the energy In the Company's
plants.

Purchased natural gas increased $ 1.8 million
(3%) in 1995 largely because of higher interruptible
gas sales including gas used as a boiler fuel at the
Roseton Plant. The 1994 S6.7 million (12%) increase in
gas purchased was due primarily to increased sales

Operating Expenses:
Fuel and purchased

electricity ................ $ 1,279 1 $(10266) (8)
Purchased natural gas 1,751 3 6588 12

Other expenses of
operation ................

Maintenance .............
Nine Mile 2 Plant

operation and
maintenance .........

Depreciation and
amortization ........... 1,087 3 698 2

Taxes, other than
Income tax ............. (190)

Federal Income tax ... 997
Total ......,.„......... s(1,214)
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of natural gas to the other cotenant owners for use
as a boiler fuel at the Roseton Plant and increased
sales of natural gas to residential and commercial
customers. As discussed in Note 8 of the Notes,
competitively bid contracts that the Company has in
place for a majority of its gas supply willexpire in 1996
after the 1995-1996 winter heating season and are
expected to be replaced with competitively bid
contracts with third-parly gas suppliers.

Other expenses of operation decreased $2.4
million (3%) in 1995 primarily because of decreased
costs of the Company's electric distribution and
transmission system. The 1994 increase of S3.4 million
(4%) ln other expenses of operation was primarilydue
to higher employee wages and associated fringe
benefits.

Maintenance expenses decreased S2.9 million
(10%) in 1995 due largely to a $3.5 milliondecrease in
costs associated with the Company's electric
generating plants and a S1.6 milliondecrease in leak
repair costs on the Company's gas distribution and
transmission system. These decreases were partially
offset by a S2.0 million increase in the Company's
electric distribution and transmission system costs
largely resulting from increases to storm costs and
tree trimming expenses in 1995. The 1994 decrease
of $2.4 million (8%) in maintenance expenses was
due primarilyto $4.1 millionof higher costs incurred In
1993 for the scheduled major overhauls of Units 3 and
4 at the Danskammer Plant with no comparable
overhauls in 1994. These costs were partially offset by
a $ 1.9 million Increase in maintenance costs related
to the Company's gas transmission and distribution
system ln 1994.

The Company's portion of operating expenses,
taxes and depreciation pertaining to the operation
of the Nine Mile 2 Plant are included in the
Company's financial results. In 1995, the Company's
portion of the costs of the Nine Mile 2 Plant de- .
creased S879,000 (6%) due primarily to a decrease in
the nuclear plant's operation and maintenance
costs. The Company's portion of the 1994 costs of
the Nine Mite 2 Plant increased $773&8 (5%) due to
the inclusion of approximately $ 1.7 millionof non-
recurring expenses largely attributable to Niagara
Mohawk's corporate restructuring efforts at the Nine
Mile 2 Plant.

The Company's composite rate for depreciation
amounted to 3.14% in 1995, 3.15% in 1994 and 3.17%
ln 1993 of the original cost of average depreciable
properly., The ratio of the amount of accumulated
depreciation to the cost of depreciable property at
December 31 was 35.3% ln 1995,34.5% ln 1994 and
32.8% ln 1993.

Property taxes, including school taxes, increased
S1.2 millionand S1.5 million in 1995 and 1994, respec-
tively.

State and local taxes levied on gross revenues
decreased $ 1.2 millionand S406,000 ln 1995 and
1994, respectively. The 1995 decrease in revenue
taxes was largely due to a change In New York State
tax law, reducing the surcharge tax rate for utility
service from 12.5% to 7.5% effective June 1, 1995. In
1994, the revenue taxes decreased due to the
reduced rate of the New YorkState Surcharge Tax
for utilityservice from 15% to 12.5% effective June 1,
1994.

With the enactment in August 1993 of the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 (OBRA),
the corporate federal income tax rate increased
from 34% to 35%, effective January 1, 1993. The PSC
authorized deferral of the resultant increase in the
corporate federal income tax rate ln 1993 until its
disposition is determined ln the next rate case.

See Note 3 of the Notes for an additional analysis
and reconciliation of the federal income tax.

OTHER INCOME AND INTEREST CHARGES

Other income (excluding AFDC) increased S1.7
million (23%) In 1995 and $921,000 (14%) in 1994. The
increase was substantially due to the gain on the
sale of long-term stock Investments in June and
December 1995 which is more fullydiscussed in Note
10 of the Notes. Other income Increased in 1994
primarily because of an increase ln the amount of
MirrorCWIP whIch flowed through the Income
statement as a rate moderator, prescribed by the
Order of the PSC Issued and effective february 11,
1994, as referred to above under the caption
entitled "Rate Proceedings - Electric."

Total interest charges (excluding AFDC) de-
creased S2.2 million (7%) ln 1995 and $ 1.2 million (4%)
in 1994. The following table sets forth some of the
pertinent data on the Company's outstanding debt:

12K 32K 329
(lhoissords of 005ors)

Long-term debt:
Newdebtissued ............. $ - S - S 4098
Debt retired ..................... 2,562 50%0 400
Outstanding at year-end':
Amount Oncluding
current portion) ........... 391,715 393,853 443597

Effective rate ................. 7.00% 6.71% 6.75%
Short-term debt:

Average daily amount
outstanding ................. $ 103 S 16 S 330

Weighted average
interest rate ................. 6.16% 6.69% 3.94%

'/ncludlng debt afsubsldlarles af $5.3 mlllian In 1995 and
$4.8 mllllonin 15%4 and 1993.

See Notes 4 and 6 of the Notes for additional information on
short-term and tong-term debt of the Company.
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FINANCIALINDICES
Selected financial indices for the last five years are set forth in the following table:

Pretax coverage of
total interest charges:

Including AFDC .

Excluding AFDC

Pretax coverage of total interest
charges and preferred stock dividends .

Percent of construction expenditures
financed from Internal funds .

3.68x 3.38x 3.29x 3.07x 2.70x
3A3x 3.15x 3.15x 2.95x 2.62x

2.97x 2.74x 2.65x 2.49x 2.22x

100% 100% 100% 100% 88%

AFDC and MirrorCWIP as a percentage
of income available for common stock

Effective tax rate .

16% 16% 1 1% 10% 8%

35% 35% 35% 34% 33%

Refer to Note 1 of the Notes entitled Summary of Significant Accounting Policies under subcaptions
Rates, Revenues and Regulatory Matters and Deferred Finance Charges - Nine Mile 2 Plant for a

definition of MirrorCWIP.

COMMONSTOCK
DIVIDENDSAIRE
PRICE RANGES

The Company and Its principal predecessors
have paid dMdends on its common stock ln each
year commencing 1903, and the common stock of
the Company has been listed on the New York
Stock Exchange since 1945. The price ranges and
the dividends paid for each quarterly period during
the Company's last two fiscal years are Indicated
on page 15 of this Report.

On June 25, 1993, the Company increased the
quarterly dividend rate on Its common stock to
S.515 per share and on June 24, 1994 Increased
such quarterly dividend rate to S.52 per share. On
June 23, 1995, the Company further increased such
quarterly dividend rate to S.525 per share. The
Company presently intends to increase future
common stock dMdends by a modest amount If
and to the extent supported by sustained earnings
growth, while at the same time gradually reducing
the Company's payout ratio; however, any deter-

mination of future dMdend declarations, and the
amounts and dates of such dividends, willdepend
on the circumstances at the time of consideration
of such declaration.

The number of registered holders of common
stock as of December 31, 1995 was 25A22. Of
these, 24,725 were accounts in the names of
IndMduals with total holdings of 6225354 shares, or
an average of 252 shares per account. The 697
other accounts, In the names of Institutional or other
non-Individual holders, for the most part, hold shares
of common stock for the benefit of individuals.

The Company's 4.85% Promissory Notes be-
came due and were retired on December 1, 1995.
Therefore, the limitations contained in these notes,
upon the rIght of the Company to declare or pay
any dMdend or make any other distribution on or
acquire, for a consideration, any shares of its
common stock, no longer apply. Thus, at Decem-
ber 31, 1995 the amount of retained earnings
available for dividends on the Company's common
stock Is 100% of the amount reported In the Consoli-
dated Balance Sheet.
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REPIOIRT 0IF INDEPENDENTACCIOIUIVIAj!WS

IQ price Waterhouse
zu'o

the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Central Hudson Gas &Electric Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated state-
ments of Income, of retained earnings and of cash flows present fairly, In all material respects, the financial
position of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 1995 and 1994,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended De-
cember 31, 1995, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi-
nancial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these financial statements In
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the finan-
cial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reason-
able basis for the opinion expressed above.

New York, New York
January 26, 1996

STATEMENTOF EIANAGEMENT'SRESPONSIBILITY
Management is responsible for the preparation, Integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial

statements of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation and Its subsidiaries (collectively, the Company) as
well as all other Information contained in this Annual Report. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in conformiiy with generally accepted accounting principles and, in some cases, reflect
amounts based on the best estimates and judgements of the Company's Management, giving due consid-
eration to materiality.

The Company maintains adequate systems of Internal control to provide reasonable assurance, that.
among other things, transactions are executed In accordance with Management's authorization, that the
consolidated financial statements are prepared In accordance with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples and that the assets of the Company are properly safeguarded. The systems of internal control are
documented, evaluated and tested by the Company's internal auditors on a continuing basis. Due to the in-
herent limitations of the effectiveness of Internal controls, no Internal control system can provide absolute
assurance that errors willnot occur. Management believes that the Company has maintained an effective
system of Internal control over the preparation of Its financial Information including the consolidated financial
statements of the Company as of December 31, 1995.

Independent accountants were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of the Com'-
pany and issue their report thereon. The Report of Independent Accountants, which is presented above,
does not limitthe responsibility of Management for information contained in the consolidated financial state-
ments and elsewhere in the Annual Report.

The Company's Board of Directors maintains a Committee on Auditwhich is composed of Directors who
are not employees of the Company. The Committee on Audit meets with Management, its Internal Auditing
Manager, and its independent accountants several times a year to discuss internal controls and accounting
matters, the Company's consolidated financial statements, the scope and results of the audits performed by
the Independent accountants and the Company's Internal Auditing Department. The Independent accoun-
tants and the Company's Internal Auditing Manager have direct access to the Committee on Audit.

JOHN E. MACK,III

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

DONNAS. DOYLE
Controller

January 26, 1996
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CGNSOLII3ATEDBALANCESHEET

At December 31, (In Thousands)

ASSETS

1995 1994

UtilityPlant
Electric
Gas..
Common.
Nuclear fuel.

$ 1,149,233
140,341

83,220
32,541

S1,114,574
131,830

80,652
31,525

1,405,335 1,358,581

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Nuclear fuel amortization

Construction work in progress
Net UtilityPlant

490,576
26,435

888,324

48 770
937,094

462,105
23,655

872,821

58,252
931,073

Other Property and Investments .. 11,332 10,948

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from customers - net of allowance for

doubtful accounts; S2.5 million in 1995 and $2.0 million in 1994...

Accrued unbllled utilityrevenues .

Other receivables.
Materials and supplies, at average cost:

Fuel
Construction and operating .

Special deposits and prepayments .

Total Current Assets.

15,478

44,536
15,806

4,674

13,319
14,271

12 689
120,743

5,792

43.908
15,076
5,953

19,293

14,096
12,092

116,210

Deferred Charges
Regulatory assets (Note 1).
Unamortized debt expense
Other.

Total Deferred Charges ..

159,907

6,080
14,936

180,923

169,808
6,527

16,215
192,550

TOTALASSETS $ 1,250,092 S1,250,781

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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At December 31, In Thousands 1995 1994

CAPITALIZATIONAND LIABILITIES

Capitalization
Common Stock Equity

Cornrnon stock, S5 par value (Note 5).
Paid-In capital (Note 5) .

Retained earnings .

Capital stock expense
Unrealized gain on investment (Note 10) .

Total Common Stock Equity .

S 87,480
282,942

90,475
(6,658)

454,239

S 86,192
277,205

79,284

(6,773)
823

436,731

Cumulative Preferred Stock (Note 5)
Not subject to mandatory redemption ~ . ~ ~

Subject to mandatory redemption.
Total Cumulative Preferred Stock .

21,030
35,000
56,030

46,030
35,000
81,030

Long-term Debt (Note 6) ~ . ~ .

Total Capitalization.
389,245
899,514

389,364
907,125

Current Liabilities
Current redemption of preferred stock
Current rnaturities of long-term debt
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Dividends payable
Accrued taxes and interest.
Accrued vacation (Note 1)

Customer deposits ..................
Other.

Total Current Liabilities

13,000

1,577

24,433
10,244

7,824
4,157
4,021
6,166

71,422

3,525
3,000

29A41
10,246

6,829
4,081

3,763
5,556

66A41

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Regulatory liabilities (Note 1).
Operating reserves
Other

Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities ..............

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax (Note 3)

74,132
6,024
9,659

89,815

189,341

72,134
5,663

19A63
97,260

179,955

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2 and 8)

TOTALCAPITALIZATIONAND LIABILITIES........................ ~ ..~....... $ 1,250,092 S1,250,781

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTOF INCOME
Year Ended December 31,

Operating Revenues
Electric
Gas ..

Total - own territory.
Electric sales to other utilities.

Total Operating Revenues ..

(In Thousands) 1995

$396,673
102,770

Q~XS
12 772

512,215

1994

$400,327
104,586
Rrrm

10,755

1993

WMV
11,586

rv'.3 33

$411239
94A48

Operating Expenses
Operation:

Fuel used in electric generation
Purchased electricity.
Purchased natural gas .

Other expenses of operation.
Maintenance .

Depreciation and amortization (Note 1) .

Taxes, other than income tax
Federal Income tax (Note 3).

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income.

Other Income and Deductions
Allowance forequity funds used during construction (Note 1) ....,
Federal income tax (Note 3)
Other - net

Total Other Income and Deductions ....................~.........

Income before Interest Charges..

Interest Charges
Interest on long-term debt
Other interest .

Allowance for borrowed funds used
during construction (Note 1)

Amortization of expense on debt.
Total Interest Charges.

Net Income
Premium on Preferred Stock Redemption - Net.
Dividends Declared on Cumulative Preferred Stock ...........~..............
Income Available for Common Stock .

Common Stock:
Average shares outstanding (000s) ..

Earnings per share on average shares outstanding ....

60,940
52,323
62,339
99,063
29,440
41,467
66,709
29 040

441,321

70,894

986
353

8,886~K
81,119

25,925
1,917

(514)
1,069

2F$97

52,722
169

4,903~55
17,380

$2.74

4K5

73,133

866
1,237
6,296

81532

27,541
1,784

(515)
1,793

35503

50,929

5,127

17,102
$2.68

67,899
44,085
60588

101,925
32,716
40380
66,899
28,043

35

72,291
49,959
53,9(m
98327
34A86
39,682
65~
28,603
4M

74,561

934
1,445
5,167
r6%

82,107

28,877
1,204

(611)
2,247

3l 7T7

50,390

5,562
~44, 25

16,725
$2.68

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTOF RETAINED
Year Ended December 31, (In Thousands) 1995 1994 1993

Balance at beginning of year .

Net Income
$ 79,284 S 69,023

52,722 50,929
132 OOE 771706>2

S 58,692
50390

109.082

Premium on Preferred Stock Redemption - Net
Dividends declared:

On cumulative preferred stock
On common stock

(S2.095 per share 1995; S2.075 per share 1994;
S2.045 per share 1993) .

Balance at end of year.

169

4,903 5,127 5,562

41 362 40 668

5 90475 8 79284

40 059

8 69023

36459 ~~4+ ~34 97

34

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an Integral part hereof.
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CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTOF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, (ln Thousands) 1995 1994 1993

Operating Activities
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net Income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization including

nuclear fuel amortization ..

Deferred income taxes, net .

Allowance for equity funds used during construction ....
Nine Mile 2 Plant deferred finance charges, net ............
Provisions for uncollectibles
Accrued pension costs.
Gain on sale of long-term investment
Deferred gas costs
Deferred gas refunds.
Other - net
Changes in current assets and liabilities, net:

Accounts receivable and unbilled utilityrevenues ...
Materials and supplies ..

Special deposits and prepayments.
Accounts payable .

Accrued taxes and interest
Other current liabilities ..

Net cash provided by operating activities ..

Investing Activities
Additions to plant.
Allowance for equity funds used during construction ..................~....
Net additions to plant.
Roseton Plant restoration costs related to fire damage ....................
Insurance recoveries related to Roseton Plant restoration ...............
Nine Mile2 Plant decommissioning trust fund .

Proceeds from sale of long-term investments .

Other- net
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of:

Long-term debt
Common stock
Cumulative preferred stock

Net borrowings (repayments) of short-term debt ..............................
Retirement and redemption of long-term debt .................................
Retirement and redemption of cumulative preferred stock .............
Premium on preferred stock redemption
DMdends paid on cumulative preferred and common stock .........
Issuance and redemption costs
Net cash used in financing actMtles.

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Interest paid (net of amounts capitalized)
Federal income taxes paid.

$52,722

45,388
14,146

(986)
(4,855)
3,220

(10,627)
(2,104)
5,302

(1,784)
11,466

(3,300)
5,799
(567)

(5,008)
995
944

I >o 7s<

(50,269)
986

(49,283)

(1,895)
2,879

(1 ~ 161)
(49,460)

1,000
7,064

(3,000)
(3,139)

(12,000)
(146)

(41,364)
(20)

(51 605)

9,686

5 792

$ 15478

$26,738
14,100

S50.929

44,616
12,970

(866)
(4.855)
3306

(2028)

3,256
2416
4376

(2,604)
2,028
(724)
887
219

1,396
TKSn

(58.045)
866

(57,179)
(853)

4371
(895)

(2548)
(57204)

230
7,783

3.000
(50,273)

(40328)
(110)

~79.698

(21380)

27.172

S 5,792

S 28,681
12,100

43,887
15593

(934)
(7,987)
3A31

(2952)
(670)

(2,974)
416

3,807

(3,701)
2g23

444
6M

(4&1)
7

HT87T

(54,037)
934

(53,103)
(9A54)
5,936
(942)

2,212
(215)

(55~)

41,722
30,122
35,000

(15,000)
(41A43)
(35,000)

(39527)
(2271)

~26397

15,914

11258

S 27,172

S 30,287
13,000

The Notes to Consolidated i7nanclal Statements are an integral part hereof.
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NIOITES TO CONSOLIDATEDFINANCIALSTATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

General: The Company is subJect to regulation by
the Public Service Commission of the State of New
York (PSC) and the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) with respect to its rates for service
and the maintenance of Its accounting records. The
Company's accounting policies conform to generally
accepted accounting principles as applied to
regulated public utilities and are in accordance
with the accounting requirements and rate-making
practices of the regulatory authorities having
Jurisdiction.

Certain amounts from prior years have been
reclassified on the consolidated financial statements
to conform with the 1995 presentation. Preparation
of the financial statements includes the use of
estimates.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated
financial statements Include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries. Allintercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

The Company's subsldiarles are each wholly
owned, and consist of landholding, cogeneration or
energy management companIes. The net income
of the Company's subsidiaries Is reflected in the
Consolidated Statement of Income as other non-
operating Income.

UtilityPlant: The costs of additions to utilityplant and
replacements of retired units of property are capital-
Ized at original cost. The Company's share of the
costs of Unit No. 2 of the Nine Mile Point Nuclear
Station (Nine Mile 2 Plant) are capitalized at original
cost, less the disallowed investment of $ 169.3 million
which was recorded in 1987. Costs include labor,
materials and supplies, indirect charges for such
items as transportation, certain taxes, pension and
other employee benefits and an allowance for the
cost of funds used during construction (AFDC).
Replacement of minor items of properly is included In
maintenance expenses.

The original cost of property, together with
removal cost, less salvage, is charged to accumu-
lated depreciation at such time as the properly ls
retired and removed from service.

Jointly Owned Facilities: The Company has a 9%, or
102.9 MW, undivided interest in the 1,143 MWNine
Mile 2 Plant (see Note 2) and a 35%%d, or 420 MW,
undivided interest In the 1200 MWRoseton Steam
Electric Generating Plant (Roseton Plant) (see Note 8
caption "Roseton Plant ).

The Company's pro rata shares of the investments
in the Nine Mile 2 Plant and the Roseton Plant, as
included in its Consolidated Balance Sheet at
December 31, 1995 and 1994, were:

12K 3224
(fhoeands of Oolors)

Nine Mile 2 Plant
Plant in service $315,423 $309593
Construction work In progress 594 3,941
Accumulated depreciation (55,319) (48248)

Roseton Plant
Plant In service $ 133,741 $ 130310
Construction work In progress 1,872 3,740
Accumulated depreciation (71,880) (70525)

Allowance For Funds Used During Construction: The
Company includes in plant costs AFDC approxi-
mately equivalent to the cost of funds used to
finance construction expenditures. The concurrent
credit for the amount so capitalized is reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Income as follows: the
portion applicable to borrowed funds is reported as
a reduction of interest charges while the portion
applicable to other funds (the equity component, a
noncash item) Is reported as other income. The
AFDC rate was 8.5(7L in 1995, 8.5(7t'. in 1994 and
8.75L in 1993.

Depreciation and Amortization: For financial state-
ment purposes, the Company's depreciation
provisions are computed on the straight-line method
using rates based on studies of the estimated useful
lives and estimated net salvage of properties, with
the exception of the Nine Mile2 Plant which Is

depreciated on a remaining life amortization
method. The year 2026, which Is the year in which
the Nine Mile2 Plant operating license expires, is
used as the end date in the development of the
remaining life amortization. Reference is made to
the caption "Operating Expenses" in
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations for the ratio of
the total provision for depreciation to the original
cost of average depreciable property. The Com-
pany performs depreciation studies on a continuing
basis and, upon approval by the PSC, periodically
adjusts the rates of its various classes of depreciable
property. The most recent study was performed in
1993. The provision for depreciation of transportation
equipment Is charged indirectly to various asset and
expense accounts.

For federal income tax purposes, the Company
uses an accelerated method of depreciation and
generally uses the shortest life permiffed for each
class of assets.
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Amortization of Nuclear Fuel: The cost of the Nine
Mile 2 Plant nuclear fuel assemblies and compo-
nents Is amortized to operating expense based on
the quantity of heat produced for the generation of
electric energy. Niagara Mohawk Power Corpora-
tion (Niagara Mohawk), on behalf of the Nine Mile2
Plant cotenants, has entered into an agreement
with the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) for the
ultimate disposal and storage of spent nuclear fvel.
The cotenants are assessed a fee for such disposal
based upon the kilowatt-hours generated by the
Nine Mile 2 Plant. These costs are charged to
operating expense and recovered from customers
through base rates or through the electric fuel cost
adjustment clause described below. The Company
cannot now determine whether such arrangements
with the DOE willultimately provide for the satisfac-
tory permanent disposal of such waste products.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Com-
pany considers temporary cash investments with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Federal Income Tax: The Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries file a consolidated federal
Income tax return. Federal income taxes are
allocated to operating expenses and other Income
and cfeductlons In the Consolidated Statement of
Income. Federal income taxes are deferred under
the liabilitymethod In'accordance with Financial
Accounting Standard No. 109 "Accounting for
Income Taxes. Under the liabilitymethod, deferred
Income taxes are provided for all differences
between financial statement and tax basis of assets
and liabilities. Additional deferred income taxes
and offsetting regulatory assets or liabilities are
recorded to recognize that income taxes willbe
recoverable or refundable through fvture revenues.

Rates, Revenues and Regulatory Matters: Electric
and gas retail rates, including fuel and gas cost
adjustment clauses, applicable to intrastate service
(other than contractually established rates for
service to municipalities and governmental bodies)
are regulated by the PSC. Transmission rates,
facilities charges and rates for electricity sold for
resale in interstate commerce are regulated by the
FERC.

Revenues are recognized on the basis of cycle
billings rendered monthly or bimonthly. Estimated
revenues are accrued for those customers billed
bimonthly whose meters are not read in the current
month.

The Company's tarifffor retail electric service
includes a fuel cost adjustment clause pursuant to
which e!ectric rates are adjusted to reflect changes
in the average cost of fuels used for electric genera-
tion and in certain purchased power costs, from the
average of such costs included in base rates. The
Company's tarifffor gas service contains a compa-
rable clause to adjust gas rates for changes in the
price of purchased natural gas and certain costs of
manufactured gas.

Regulatory Assets and Uabilities: Certain utility
expenses and credits normally reflected currently in
income are deferred on the balance sheet as
regulatory assets and liabilities and are recognized in
income as the related amounts are included ln
service rates and recovered from or refunded to
customers in utilityrevenues.

The following table sets forth the Company's
regulatory assets and liabilities:

At December 31,

Regulatory Assets (Debits):
Deferred finance charges-

Nine Mile 2 Plant ...........................

Income taxes recoverable
through future rates .....................

Deferred energy efficiency cast .......

Other
Total Regulatory Assets ................

1995 1994

(In thousands)

$ 70,760 $ 71,904

65,723
11,046

~12 378

$ 159,907

69%1
9M

18,990

S169,808

Regulatory Uabilities (Credits):
Deferred finance charges-

Nine Mile2 Plant.............................
Income taxes refundable ....................
Deferred unbilled gas revenues ..........

Deferred OPEB costs over collection ..

Other

Total Regulatory Uabilities ......,......

$ 28,431

29,093

4,030

3,600
8,978

$ 74,132

S 34A31
28383

3,754

5'72,134

Deferred Finance Charges - Nine Mile 2 Plant:
During the constrvction of the Nine Mile2 Plant, the
PSC authorized the inclusion in rate base of increas-
Ing amounts of the Company's Investment in that
Plant. The Company did not accrve AFDC on any of
the Nine Mile2 Plant construction work in progress
(CWIP) which was included In rate base and for
which a cash return was being allowed; however,
the PSC ordered, effective January 1, 1983, that
amounts be accumulated in deferred debit and
credit accounts equal to the amount of AFDC which
was not being accrued on the CWIP included in rate
base (MirrorCWIP). The balance in the deferred
credit account is available to reduce future revenue
requirements by amortizing portions of the deferred
credit to other income or by the elimination through
writing offother deferred balances as directed by
the PSC. The Company expects such application of
the deferred credit willoccur over a period substan-
tiallyshorter than the life of the Nine Mile 2 Plant.
When amounts of such deferred credit are applied in
order to reduce revenue requirements, amortization
Is started for a corresponding amount of the de-
ferred debit, which amortization continues on a level
basis over the remaining life of the Nine Mile 2 Plant
resulting in recovery of such corresponding amount
through rates. MirrorCWIP is expected to be ex-
hausted by the end of the useful life of the Nine Mile
2 Plant either through the amortization or write-off
procedures described above or through the write-off
of the remaining debit and credit as directed by the
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PSC. The net effect of this procedure Is that at the
end of the amortization period for the deferred
credit, the accounting and rate-making treatment
willbe the same as ifthe Nine Mile2 Plant CWIP had
not been included in rate base during the construc-
tion period.

Pursuant to the PSC's Opinion and Order Deter-
mining Revenue Requirement and Rate Design,
issued and effective February 11, 1994 (1993 Rate
Order) the Company was authorized to offset S5.5
million of the deferred credit against other deferred
balances and to amortize S6.0 millionannually
beginning in December 1993. In 1995, 1994 and
1993, the Company amortized S6.0 million, S6.0
millionand S3.3 million, respectively, of thh deferred
credit.

The S6.0 millionamortization of the deferred credit
willbe continued until changed In a future PSC rate
order. The level of the deferred debit amortization h
based on the level of deferred credits that have
been utilized in setting revenue requirements for a
rate year. Anyamounts of deferred credits that are
utilized in the period between the end of the rate
year and the setting of new rates are Included ln the
amortization level for the deferred debit over the
then remaining life of the Nine Mile 2 Plant. The
deferred debit amortization level h currently set at
S1.145 million per year.

Deferred Energy Efficiency Costs: The PSC has
required utilities to adopt comprehensive long-range
planning which includes demand side management
and energy conservation (Energy Efficiency Pro-
gram). The Company's 1995 Energy Efficiency
Program was approved by the PSC. The Energy
Efficiency Program costs are deferred and amortized
over either tive or ten years, as directed by the PSC.

In addition to the deferral of Energy Efficiency
Program costs, the Company recovers lost net
revenues that result from the Program. Incentive
earnings related to the achievement of energy
efficiency goals are recovered through the electric
fuel cost adjustment clause as discussed below.

Deferred and Accrued Vacation: The Company's
employees begin accruing vacation In July of each
year for use in the followingyear; the monthly
accrual of days is based on the number of years of
service for each employee. However, for rate-
making purposes, vacation pay is recognized as an
allowable expense only when paid. Accordingly,
the Company records a current liabilityfor earned
vacation pay and an equivalent regulatory asset
representing the future recoverability of the differ-
ence between costs incurred and costs recovered In
the rate-making process.

Deferred Electric Fuel Costs: The provisions of the
electric fuel cost adjustment clause are such that
changes in fuel costs incurred in the current month
are not billed or credited to customers until subse-
quent months. Therefore, in order to match costs
and revenues, the Gompany defers that portion of
such costs Incurred In the current month which will
result ln a cost adjustment in subsequent months.

Pursuant to a 1985 Order of the PSC, the
Company's electric fuel cost adjustment clause
provides for a partial sharing of variations in fuel costs
from the leveh of fuel costs projected in rate pro-
ceedings. The Company bears 2(% of the first S10
millionof variation and l(Kof the second S10 million
ofvariation. The partial sharing applies to variations'n actual fuel costs either above or below the
projected levels; accordingly, the Company's
maximum annual exposure, or benefit, h S3 million,
before taxes.

As a result of the adoption of the partial sharing
electric fuel adjustment clause, the PSC adopted a
symmetrical sharing arrangement for net revenues
from sales to other utilities. Shortfalls below the
targeted amount, as well as amounts above the
targeted amount, willbe shared $% by the custom-
ers and 29Ã by the Company.

Reference h made to the caption Sharing
Arrangements in Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera-
tions for results of both sharing arrangements
mentioned above.

Deferred Gas Costs: In accordance with require-
ments of the PSC applicable to all New YorkState
regulated gas utilities, the Company defers each
month any difference between the amount of gas
costs incurred which Is recoverable through the gas
cost adjustment clause (GAC) and GAC revenues.
The net deferral remaining at August 31 of each year
Is amortized over a subsequent twelve-month period
for both billing and accounting purposes. See Note
8 captions "Natural Gas Supply" and Takewr-Pay
Gas Costs" as to deferral of certain contract take-or-
pay costs charged by pipeline suppliers.

New Accounting Standards:
Impairment: In March 1995, the Financial Ac-

counting Standards Board (FASB) Issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, "Account-
ing for the Impairment of Long-Uved Assets and for
Long-Uved Assets to Be Disposed Of" (SFAS 121).
SFAS 121 requires companies, including utiTities, to
assess the need to recognize a loss whenever events
or circumstances occur which indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be fullyrecov-
erable. SFAS 121 also amends SFAS 71, "Accounting
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for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation, to
require the write-offof a regulatory asset Ifit is no
longer probable that future revenues willrecover the
cost of the asset. SFAS 121, which fs applicable to
the Company starting in 1996, may have conse-
quences for a number of utititfes, especially those
which have relatively hfgh-cost nuclear generating
assets, including the Company, which are facing
growing competitive pressures that may erode prices
for future utilityservices. The Company does not
expect that the adoption of SFAS 121 willhave a
materfal impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Company in 1996 based on the
current regulatory treatment of Its long-lived and
regulatory assets. However, future developments in
the utilityindustry including the effects of deregula-
tion and increasing cornpetitton could change this
conclusion.

Plant Decommissioning: Because diverse ac-
counting practices have developed for recognizing
the cost of closure and removal of long-lived assets
In the financial statements, Including the cost of
decommissioning utilitygenerating plants, the FASB
has agreed to review the accounting for this topic.
The FASB fs considertng when a liabilityfor plant
decommissioning or other asset retirement should be
recognized, how any such liabilityshould be mea-
sured, and whether a corresponding asset fs

created. In a prebatlot draft SFAS, issued December
1995, FASB has tentatively concluded that a liability
should be recognized for legal or unavoidable
constructive obligations forclosure and removal of
facilities such as the Nine Mite 2 Plant as the obliga-
tion is incurred. The liabilityrecognized for those
closure and removal obligations shall reflect the
present value of estimated future cash outftows
currently expected to be required to satisfy those
obligations. Initial recognltlon of a liabilityfor closure
and removal obligations increases the cost of the
related asset because incurrence of the obligation fs

Integral to or a prerequisite for operating the asset.
Further, ifsecurities or other assets have been
dedicated for future settlement of closure and
removal obligations, the liabilityfor those obligations
shall, generally, not be offset by those dedicated
assets. The proposed statement, when issued, may
be effective as early as the 1997 financial statements
of the Company. The Company does not believe
that such changes, ifrequired, would have an
adverse effect on results of operations due to Its
current belief that decommissioning costs will
conttnue to be recovered fn rates.

NOTE 2 - NINEMILE2 PLANT

General: The Nine Mile 2 Plant fs located ln Oswego
County, New York, and fs operated by Niagara
Mohawk. The Nfne Mile 2 Plant fs owned as tenants In
common by the Company (9% Interest), Niagara
Mohawk (41% Interest), New YorkState Etectrfc &Gas
Corporation (1 8% interest), Long Island Ughttng
Company (1 8% Interest) and Rochester Gas and
Electric Corporation (14% interest). The output of the
Nine Mile 2 Plant, which has a rated net capability of
1,143 MW,(as reportedby Niagara Mohawk) Is

shared and the operating expenses of the Plant are
allocated to the cotenants in the same proportions
as the cotenants'espective ownership Interests. The
Company's share of direct operating expense for the
Nine Mite 2 Plant fs included in the appropriate
expense classifications in the accompanying Consoli-
dated Statement of Income.

Under the Operating Agreement entered into by
the cotenants, Niagara Mohawk acts as operator of
the Nine Mile 2 Plant, and atl five cotenants share
certain policy, budget and managerial oversight
functions. The Operating Agreement remains In
effect subject to termination on six months'otice.

Radioactive Waste: An agreement for interfm
storage of the Nine Mile2 Plant low-level radioactive
waste has been agreed to between Niagara Mo-
hawk and the cotenants that willprovide for the
storage of the Nine Mite 2 Plant low-level radioactive
waste at Unit No. 1 of the Nine Mile Point Nuclear
Station (Nine Mile 1 Plant) until June 30, 2010. It is

expected that all low-level radioactive waste stored
at Nine Mile 1 Plant (owned 100% by Niagara Mo-
hawk) willhave been transferred to a low-level
radioactive waste repository operating wlthtn New
YorkState by this date. Niagara Mohawk has
contracted with the DOE for disposal of hIgh-level
radioactive waste (spent fuel) from the Nine Mile 2
Plant (see Note 1- Summary of Signiftcant Account-
ing Policies - Amortization of Nuclear Fuel ). The
DOE has forecasted the start of operations of Its hlgh-
level radioactive waste repository to be no sooner
than 2010. The Company has been advised by
Niagara Mohawk that the Nine Mile 2 Plant Spent
Fuel Storage Pool has a capacity for spent fuel that is

adequate until 2014. If DOE schedule slippage
should occur, facilities that extend the on-site storage
capability for spent fuel at the Nine Mile2 Plant
beyond 2014 woutd need to be acquired.

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning Costs: The
Company's 9% share of costs to decommission the
Nine Mile 2 Plant, fs estimated to be approxfmately
S209.6 million (S72.6 million In 1995 dollars) and
assumes that decommissioning willbegin In the year
2028. This estimate fs based upon a site specific study
completed In December 1995.
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The annual decommissioning allowance re-
flected in ratemaking is based upon a 1989 study as
filed with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC).
The 1989 study Included amounts for radioactive and
non-radioactive dismantlement costs and is charged
to operations through depreciation recovery. The
1989 study estimated the Company's 9% share of
costs of decommissioning to be S118.5 million ($26.4
million in 1995 dollars). The PSC authorized recovery,
on an annual basis, of S212,000 for internal decom-
missioning funding (i.e., funds held by the Company)
and S787.000 for external decommissioning funding
(l.e., funds held in trust). Total recoveries authorized
by the PSC for the internal decommissioning fund
from August 1988 through December 31, 1995
amounted to S1.4 million. The external decommis-
sioning trust fund at December 31, 1995 and 1994
amounted to S6.4 millionand S4.5 million, respec-
tively. The net earnings from inception through
December 31, 1995 amounted to S1.6 million. The
external decommissioning trust fund Is reflected in
the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet ln
"Other Property and Investments." The amount of
accumulated decommissioning costs recovered
through rates and the net earnings of the external
decommissioning trust fund are reflected in accumu-
lated depreciation in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet and amount to S7.9 millionand $5.7 millionat
December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively. NRC
regulations require the direct funding of eventual
decommissioning costs of nuclear facilities. The
Company, ln 1990, established a master trust in order
to comply with these NRC requirements. The
Company has estimated that its share of the mini-
mum funding requirements willbe approximately
S38.8 million in 1995 dollars.

There is no assurance that the decommissioning
allowance recovered in rates willultimately aggre-
gate a sufficient amount to decommission the unit.

Reference is made to the caption "New Ac-
counting Standards - Plant Decommissioning in
Note 1 above for details of the proposed changes in
accounting for nuclear decommissioning costs.

The Company believes that ifdecornmissloning
costs are higher than currently estimated, such
higher costs would be recovered in rates.

Decontamination and Decommissioning Fund: The
Energy Policy Act of 1992, signed into law in October
1992, established a Uranium Enrichment Decontami-
nation and Decommissioning Fund (Fund) for the
decommissioning of the DOE's enrichment facilities.
Special annual assessments to utilities with nuclear
power plants, which began in 1993 and continue
until 2006, and government appropriations for such
purpose willbe deposited into the Fund. The Energy
Policy Act of 1992 also provides that such assess-
ments shall be considered a cost of fuel and shall be
recoverable in rates.

The unamortized portion of the Company's share
of this assessment at December 31, 1995 and 1994 of
approximately S630,000 and S664QS, respectively

and a corresponding regulatory asset are reflected
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Payments to the
Fund are made to Niagara Mohawk by the
cotenants of the Nine Mile 2 Plant.

Reconciliation: The following is a reconciliation
between the amount of federal income tax com-
puted on Income before taxes at the statutory rate
and the amount reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Income:

32K JR'K
(fhoUsonds of Dolors)

$52,722 $50.929 $50390
14,541 13%6 1135
14,146 12.970 15593

ggÃ PT735 PT58

Computed tax 35%

statutory rate .........................

Increase (decrease) to
computed tax due to:

Tax depreciation ...............

Deferred finance charges-
Nine Mile2 Plant .............

Deferred gas costs ............

Deferred OPEB expense ...

Pension expense ...............

Alternative minimum tax ..

Other..................................
Federal hcome tax ...................
Deferred income tax ................

Total federal income tax ..

Effective tax rate ...................

$28,493 $27,207 $27,142

(10,096) (9497) (10,796)

(1,701)
2,286
(223)

(1,738)
(2,958)

478
14,541

14,146

528,687

(1,700) (862)
1,149 (844)

713 (1 ji17)
(1 A71) (893)
(1544) (59)

(921) (5M)
13%6 11~
12,970 15593

$26%6 S27,158

35.2'/ 34.5% 35.(K

NOTE 3 - FEDERAL INCOME TAX
Components of Federal Income Tax: The following is

a summary of the components of federal income tax
as reported in the Consolidated Statement of income:

32K 3224 329
(rreusonds of Dorors)

Charged to operating expense:
Federalincome tax..............., $ 19,245 $ 18,190 $ 14%2
Deferred income tax ............. 9,795 9%3 14,101

Income tax charged to
operating expense ..... 29,040 28943 28g63

Charged (credited) to other
income and deductiore

Federal income tax ........... (4,704) (4%4) (2,937)
Deferred income tax ......... 4,351 3,117 1A92

(credited) to other
income and deductions (353) (1237) (1A45)

Totalfederalincometax.. $28,687 $26%6 S27,158
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Accumulated Deferred Income
Tax Assets:

Future tax benefits on
investment tax credit basis
difference .............................

Alternative minimum tax...........
Tax depreciation- Nine Mile 2

Hant disallowed investment
Unbilled revenues ......................
Other

Accumulated Deferred Income
Tax Assets

32K 3224
ghoumnds of Dolkm)

$ 16,073
10,530

S 163329

12,989

3,077
5,434

22,444

6,155
5945

17511

$ 57,558 S 58429

Accumulated Deferred Income
Tax Uabilities:

Tax depreciation ....................... $ 172,033
Accumulated deferred

investment tax credit ........,.. 29,850
Future revenues - recovery of

plant basis differences ......... 22,971
Other 22,045

Accumulated Deferred Income
Tax UabiTities .................................. $246,899

$ 162,734

31254

24269
20327

S238 $84

Net Accumulated Deferred
Income Tax Uability ............... $ 189,341 $ 179,955

The following Is a summary of the components of
accumulated deferred income taxes at December 31,
1995 and 1994, as reported in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet:

NOTE 4- SHORT-TI<MMBORROWING
AEMANGEMENTS

The Company has in effect a revoMng credit
agreement with four commercial banks which
allows It to borrow up to S50.0 million through
December 14, 1997 (Agreement). The Agreement
gives the Company the option of borrowing at
either the prime/federal funds rate, or three other
money market rates ifsuch rates are lower. The
Agreement also provides for the payment of an
annual commitment fee of 1/16 of 1% per annum
on the unborrowed amount and a facilityfee of 1/8
of 1% per annum on the total amount of the facility.
Compensating balances are not required under the
Agreement. In addition, the Company continues to
maintain confirmed lines of credit totaling S1.5
millionwith two regional banks. There were no
outstanding loans under these Agreements at
December 31, 1995 or 1994. In order to diversify its
sources of short-term financing, during 1994 the
Company entered into short-term credit facilities
agreements with four commercial banks totaling
S130.0 million in the aggregate. There was no
outstanding short-term debt at December 31, 1995.
There was S3.0 millionoutstanding at December 31,
1994 related to these credit facilities with a
weighted average Interest rate of6.69L

Authorization from the PSC limits the amount
the Company may have outstanding, at any time,
under all of Its short-term borrowing arrangements
to S52.0 million in the aggregate.

NOTE 5- CAPlTALIZATION-CAPlTALSEC%K

Common Stock, S5 par value; 30QSg00 shares authorized:
Paid-In Capital:

Shares
~Outstandin

Amount
(S000)

Common Stock Paid-In
Capital
(S000)

January 1,1993
Issued through public offering
Issued under dividend reinvestment plan .

Issued under customer stock purchase plan
December 31, 1993.

Issued under dividend reinvestment plan .

Issued under customer stock purchase plan
December 31, 1994.

Issued under dividend reinvestment plan .

Issued under customer stock purchase plan .

Redemption of preferred stock .........................
December 31, 1995.

16XQ8569

700,000

185,101

39A77

16,953,147

227,772

57545
17,238A64

218,610
38,977

17A96,051

S 80,143

3am
926

197

84,766

1,139

287

86,192

1,093
195

S 87A80

S245&9
19,299

5,124

1 l)76
270,848

5,104

1,253

277,205

4,897
879
(39)

$282,942
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Series
Not SubJect to Mandatory Redemption:

41/2%
4.75%
4.35%
4.96%
7.72%
7A4%

S 107.00
106.75
102.00
101.00
101.00(a)

Subject to Mandatory Redemption:

Cumulative Preferred Stock, S100 par value; 1,200,000 shares authorized:
Final Redemption

Redemption Price
Date 12/31/95

70,300
20,000
60,000
60,000

130,000

340,300

70,300
20900
60,000
60500

130X60
120900
460300

December 31.
1995 1994

6.20% 10/1/08 (b)
6.80% 10/1/27 (b)

Total

(a) Redeemed January 1, 1996 at a redemption price of$ 101.00
per share.

(b) Cannot be redeemed prior to October 1, 2003.

200,000
150 000
550,000
690,300

200500
~150 00
350.000
810300

Reference Is made to the caption "Financing
Program" ln "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" for
details on issuances and redemptions of capital
stock.

The Cumulative Preferred Stock not subject to
mandatory redemption Is redeemable only at the
option of the Company. Upon redemption, the sum
payable per share is the then current redemption
price plus accrued dividends thereon. In the event
of an involuntary liquidation of the Company, the
redemption price is S100 per share plus accrued
dividends.

The Company optionally redeemed all of its
outstanding 7A4% Cumulative Preferred Stock, at the
$ 101.22 redemption price on October 1, 1995. Costs
associated with this redemption were charged
directly to retained earnings.

The Company optionally redeemed all of its
outstanding 7.72% Cumulative Preferred Stock at the
$ 101.00 redemption price on January 1, 1996. Costs
associated with this redemption willbe charged
directly to retained earnings in 1996.

Expenses Incurred on issuance of capital stock
are accumulated and reported as a reduction in
common stock equity. These expenses are not
being amortized, except that, as directed by the
PSC, certain issuance and redemption costs and
unamortized expenses associated with certain issues
of preferred stock that were redeemed have been
deferred and are being amortized over the remain-
ing lives of the Issues subJect to mandatory
redemptions.

The PSC has authorized the issuance and sale of
certain debt and equity securities of the Company.
Accordingly, a registration statement became
effective In April. 1995 under which the Company
registered with the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission (SEC) the followingsecurities: (i) Debt
Securities and Common Stock, $5.00 par value, but
not In excess of $80.0 million in aggregate, and not
in excess of S40.0 millioninitial public offering price of
such Common Stock and (ii) Cumulative Preferred
Stock, not In excess of S25.0 million,par value S100
per share, which may be issued as Depositary
Preferred Shares, each representing 1/4 of a share of
such Cumulative Preferred Stock, each evidenced
by Depositary Receipts.
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NOTE 6 - CAPITALIZATION- LONG-TERMDEBT
Details of long-term debt are shown below:

December 31,
Sodas

Ffrst Mortgage Bonds:
6.10% (a)
7.70% (a)
8 3/4%
7.97% (a)
7.97% (a)
6.46% (a)
6 1/4% (t7)
9 1/4%%d

8.12% (a)
8.14% (a)
8.375% 8))

Promissory Notes:

April28, 2000
June 12,2000
May 1,2001
June 11, 2003
June 13,2003
August 11, 2003
June 1, 2007
May 1,2021
August 29, 2022
August 29, 2022
December 1. 2028

32K
Ohousonds of Dolors)

$ 10,000 S 10,000
25,000 25,000
30,000 30,000

8,000 8,000
8,000 8,000

10,000 10,000
4,500 4~

70,000 70,000
" 10,000 10,000

10,000 10,000
16,700 16,700

202,200 202,200

1984 Series A
1984 Series B

1985 Series A
1985 Serfes B

1987 Series A
1987 Series B

5.38% (a)
7.85% (a)

(7 3/8%) (c)
(7 3/8%) (c)
(Var. rate) (c)
(Var. rate) (c)
(Var. rate) (c)
(Var. rate) (c)

October 1, 2014
October 1, 2014
November 1, 2020
November 1, 2020
June 1, 2027
June 1, 2027
January 15, 1999
July 2,2004

16,700
16,700
36,250
36,000
33,700

9,900
20,000
15,000

184,250

16,700
16.700
36250
36500
33,700

9,900
20QN
15lNO

Secured Notes Payable of Subsidiary
Unamortized Discount on Debt

Total long-term debt

(a) issued under the Company's Medium Term Note Program.
(b) Rrst Mortgage 8onds issued ln connection with the sale by

the New YorkState Energy Research and Development Authority
(NYSERDA)of taxwxempt pollution control revenue bonds.

(c) Promissory Notes Lssued ln connection with the sale by NYSERDA
of taxwxempt pollution control revenue bonds.

3,688
(893)

$389,245

3,878
(964)

$389364

Medium Term Notes: Authorizatio by the PSC to
Issue Medium Term Notes under the Company's
Meckm Term Note Program expired on December 31,
1994. Of the S125.0 millionof Medium Term Notes
authorized under such program, $ 116.0 millionwere
Issued. By Order effective October 17, 1994, the
PSC authorized the Company to Issue and sell not
later than December 31, 1996, new debt securities
and common stock totaling not more than $80.0
million in the aggregate. Such Order also autho-
rized the issuance of up to S115.0 millionof tax
exempt NYSERDA Pollution Control Revenue Bonds
for the purpose of refinancing, ifeconomical, a like
amount of such bonds presently outstanding.

NYSERDA: The NYSERDA Pollution Control
Revenue Bonds Issued in 1985 (Sertes Aand B) and
1987 (Serfes Aand B) (collectively, the "1985 and
1987 NYSERDA Bonds" ) are variable rate obligations

subject to weekly repricing and Investor tender. The
Company has the right, exercisable Independently
with respect to each series of the 1985 and 1987
NYSERDA Bonds, to convert the Bonds of each such
series to a fixed rate for the remainder of their term.
In Its rate orders, the PSC has provided for full
recovery of the Interest costs on the Company's
1985 and 1987 Series Aand B Promissory Notes
which were issued In connection with the sale of the
1985 and 1987 NYSERDA Bonds. Deferred account-
ing has been granted by the PSC for any vartation
between actual interest rates and those Interest
rates allowed for rate-makfng purposes. The
deferred balance under such accounting at
December 31, 1995 was a regulatory asset of S1.3
millionand the deferred balance under such
accounting at December 31, 1994 was a regulatory
liabilityof $488@8. Such deferred balances are to
be disposed of in future rate cases.
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Interest Rate Cap: In 1995, the Company
entered into a three-year interest rate cap agree-
ment with a bank to manage exposure to upward
changes In interest rates on the 1985 and 1987
NYSERDA Bonds. Under this agreement, in the event
a nationally recognized tax-exempt bond Interest
rate Index exceeds 8%, the Company willreceive a
payment from such bank equal to the amount by
whIch the actual interest costs on such bonds
exceeds BVo per annum. This agreement has the
effect of limitingthe interest rate the Company must
pay on such bonds (on a S115.9 million notional
amount) to the lesser of their actual rate or 8L per
annum. In the event such bank failed to make any
required payment under such interest rate cap
agreement, the Company's exposure would be
limited to a maximum interest rate of 15L per annum
under the terms of such bonds.

Letters of Credit: The Company has in place
irrevocable letters of credit which support certain
payments required to be made on the 1985 and
1987 NYSERDA Bonds. Such letters of credit expire on
various dates. The Company anticipates being able
to extend such letters of credit ifthe Interest rate on
the related series of such bonds is not converted to a
fixed Interest rate. Ifthe Company were unable to
extend the Ieffer of credit that Is related to a particu-
lar series of such bonds, that series would have to be
redeemed unless a fixed rate of Interest became
effective. Payments made under the letters of credit
In connection with purchases of tendered 1985 and
1987 NYSERDA Bonds are repaid with the proceeds
from the remarketing of such Bonds. To the extent
the proceeds are not sufficient, the Company would
be required to reimburse the bank that issued the
letter of credit for the amount of any resulting draw
under the letter of credit by the expiration date of
the letter of credit. The letter of credit expiration
date for the letters of credit supporting the 1985
NYSERDA Bonds is November 16, 1998, and the letter
of credit expiration date for the letters of credit
supporting the 1987 NYSERDA Bonds Is September 16,
1998. The cost of these letters of credit Is $584A00 for
1995.

Debt Expense: Expenses incurred on debt Issues
and any discount or premium on debt are deferred
and amortized over the lives of the related issues.
Expenses incurred on debt redemptions prior to
maturity have been deferred and are generally
being amortized over the shorter of the remaining
lives of the related extinguished issues or the new
Issues as directed by the PSC.

Debt Covenants: Certain debt agreements
require the maintenance by the Company of certain
financial ratios and contain other restrictive cov-
enants.

Subsidiary Debt: Secured notes payable of a
subsidiary of the Company consist of term loans to
finance the Installation of energy conservation
equipment at various host facilities, located primarily
in the Northeastern United Qates. The maJority of
such loans accrue interest at the prime lending rate.
Interest and principal are amortized over the term of
each respective contract. Such loans are secured
principally by certain power purchase agreements
and proJect assets.

NOTE 7 - POSTEMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS

Retirement Income Plan: The Company has a
noncontributory retirement Income plan (Retirement
Plan) covering substantially all of its employees. The
Retirement Plan provides pension benefits that are .

based on the employee's compensation and years
of service. It has been the Company's practice to
provide periodic updates to the benefit formula
stated in the Retirement Plan.

The Company's funding policy Is to make annual
contributions equal to the amount of net periodic
pension cost, but not In excess of the maximum
allowable tax<eductible contribution under the
federal income tax law nor less than the minimum
requirement under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974.

Net periodic pension costs were allocated 73%,
73% and 71% to expense for the years 1995, 1994 and
1993, respectively, with remaining costs allocated to
capital proJects. The allocation of net periodic
pension costs between capital and expense follows
the payroll distribution.

Net periodic pension (Income) costs for 1995, 1994
and 1993 Include the following components:

12K J2H J2Rt
(ihousaeis of Dolars)

SeNice cost - benefits earned
during the period ................. $ 3,877 $ 5,876 $ 4,518

Interest cost on proJected
benefit obligation ................ 14,449 13256 13,148

Actual return on Retirement
Plan assets ............................ (38,849) (6,947) (34022)

Net amortization and defenal 9,896 (14213) 13,794

Net periodic pension
(income) costs ................. $ (10,627) S (2028) S (2552)

The net periodic pension income for 1995 and
1994 was determined using a weighted average dis-
count rate of 8.5% and 6.25%, respectively, and a
rate of Increase In future compensation levels of 5.5%
for 1995 and 1994. The expected long-term rate of
return on Retirement Plan assets used In determining
the net periodic pension (Income) costs was 10.5% for
1995 and 8.5% for 1994.
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Actuariol present value of benefit
obligations:

Accumulated benefit obligation,
Including vested benefits
of $ 170N9 and $ 146,779 ............. $ 173,281 S 148%4

Projected benefit obligation for
service rendered to date .............

Retirement Plan assets at market
value..............................................

Excess of Retirement Plan assets
over projected benefit obligation

Unrecognized net gain ....................
Pifor setvice cost not yet recognized

In net periodic pension cost ........
Unrecognized net asset being

amortized over 15 years ...............
Penskx) Asset giobTiity)recognized in

the Consolidated Bafance Sheet

$ 196,038 S171,713

250,246 223376

54,208

(52,846) 51'60%1)

3,531 3,789

(3,971) (4g66)

$ 922 S (9,705)

Retirement Plan assets consist primarily of equities
and fiked income securities. The Retirement Plan is
deemed to be fullyfunded for federal income tax
purposes, therefore, the Company did not make any
contributions to the Retirement Plan durfng 1995 or
1994.

The actuarial present value of projected benefit
obligations for October 1, 1995 and 1994 was
determined using a weighted average discount rate
of 7.5% and 8.5%, respectively, and an assumed rate
of increase in compensation of 4.5% and 5.5% for
1995 and 1994, respectively.

Pursuant to the PSC Statement of Policy and
Order Concerning the Accounting and Rate-making
Treatment for Pensions and Postretirement Benefits
Other than Pensions (OPEB), issued September 7,
1993 (Pension and OPEB Order), effective January 1,
1993 the Company began amortizing each year'
experienced gain or loss over ten years.

Pursuant to the Pension and OPEB Order,
deferred accounting has been granted by the PSC
for any variation (above or below) between actual
costs of the Company's pension plans and those
costs allowed for rate-making purposes.

Other Postretirement Benefits: The Company pro-
vides certain health care and life insurance benefits
for retfred employees through its postretirement
benefit plan (Benefiit Plan). Substantially all of the
Company's employees may become eligible for
these benefits Ifthey reach retirement age while
working for the Company. These and similar benefits
for active employees are provided through Insur-
ance companies whose premiums are based on the

The following table sets forth the Retirement Plan's
funded status at October 1, 1995 and 1994 and
amounts recognized in the Company's Consolidated
Balance Sheet at December 31, 1995 and 1994:

32K 328
(thousands ot Dolars)

benefits paid during the year. In order to recover a
portion of the costs of these benefits, the Company
requires employees who retire on or after October 1,
1994 to contribute toward the cost of such benefits.

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 1995
and 1994 includes the followingcomponents:

32K 39K
ghousands ot Dotiars)

Service cost - benefits
attributed to the period .............

Interest cost on accumulated
postretirement benefit
obligation ....................................

Actual return on Benefit Plan
assets.

Amortization of Transition
Obligation ...................................

Net amortization and deferral .......
Net periodic postretirement

benefit cost .................................

$ 1,384 S 2392

4,613 4454

(875) (426)

3,114
(1,837)

3,114
928

$ 6,399 S 10562

Accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation:

Retirees ..................................
Fully eligible employees .......
Other employees ..................

$ (31,899) S (27526)
(4,706) (4%7)

(31,495) (25%2)
(68,100) (57495)

Benefit Plan assets at
fair value ...................................... 14051

Excess of accumulated post-
retirement benefit obligation
over Benefit Plan assets ..............

Unrecognized net (gain) loss .........
Prior service cost not yet

recognized fn net periodic
postretirement benefit cost ....... (160)

Unrecognized Transition
Obligation ...................................

Postretirement benefit
liabilityrecognized ln the
Consolidated Balance Sheet .... $ (1,362) S (1,998)

22,899

(45,201) (43~)
(8,922) (14A89)

52,921 56.035

The Company fs amortizing the unfunded accu-
mulated postretirement benefit obligation (Transition
Obligation) at January 1, 1993 over a 20-year period.

The net periodic postretirement benefit cost of the
Benefit Plan for 1995 and 1994 was determined using
a weighted average discount rate of 8.50% and
6.25%, respectively, and a rate of increase in future
compensation levels of 5.5% for both periods. The
expected long-term rate of return of Benefit Plan
assets used in determining the net periodic
postretirement benefit cost was 6.7% for 1995 and
6.6% for 1994.

The Benefit Plan's funded status reconciled with the
Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet is as follows:

December 31,
32K 3924

ghousands ot Dollars)
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The accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation under the Benefit Plan at December 31,
1995 and 1994 was determined using a weighted
average discount rate of 7.5% and 8.5%, respectively
and a rate of increase In future compensation levels
of 4.5% and 5.5L for 1995 and 1994, respectively. The
expected long-term rate of return of Benefit Plan
assets used In determining the net periodic
postretirement benefit cost was 6.7'L for 1995 and
6.6L for 1994.

The assumed health care cost trend Is 12% in the
early years and trends down to an ultimate rate of
5.5% by the year 2010. A 1% Increase in health care
cost trend rate assumptions would produce an
increase in the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation at December 31, 1995 and 1994 of S8.921
and S7.545 million, respectively and an increase in
the aggregate service and Interest cost of the net
periodic postretirement benefit cost of S873XKG and
S1.076 millionfor 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The Company has established a qualified
funding vehicle for such retirement benefits for
collective bargaining employees and a similar
vehicle for management employees in the form of
qualified Voluntary Employee Beneflciaiy Association
(VEBA) trusts. The Company funded the VEBAtrusts
in 1995 and 1994 with tax-deductible contributions
totaling S7.2 millionand S8.3 million,respectively.

Pursuant to the 1993 Rate Order, an estimated
annual level of OPEB costs Is Included in the
Company's electric and gas rates, effective Novem-
ber 22, 1993. In the Pension and OPEB Order,
deferred accounting has been granted by the PSC
for any variation between actual OPEB costs and
those allowed for rate-making purposes. Such
amounts are included ln "Regulatory liabilities" on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

NOTE 8 - COMKHMENTSAND
CON'HNGENCIES

Construction Program: Reference is made to
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" for Information
regarding the Company's construction program for
the five-year period 1996-2000.

Roseton Plant: The Company Is acting as agent for
the cotenant owners with respect to operation of the
Roseton Plant. Generally, the owners share the costs
and expenses of the operation of the Roseton Plant
in accordance with their respective ownership
Interests. The Company's share of direct operating
expense for the Roseton Plant Is Included in the
appropriate expense classiflcation in the accompa-
nying Consolidated Statement of Income.

The Company, under a 1968 Agreement (Basic
Agreement), has the option to purchase the interests
of Niagara Mohawk (25L) and of Consolidated
Edison Company of New York, Inc. (Con Edison)
(40%) in the Roseton Plant in December 2004. The
exercise of this option is subject to PSC approval.

On March 30, 1994, Niagara Mohawk and the
Company entered Into a Letter of Understanding
which, among other things, provides for:

(1) consideration by the Company, Niagara
Mohawk and Con Edison for staggering the opera-
tion of the two units of the Roseton Plant ln order to
take advantage of current market costs for energy
and capacity; and

(2) the purchase by the Company of up to 100
MWof energy and capacity during peak periods
from Niagara Mohawk during the period May 1, 1994
through April30, 1995. During the period May 1995
through April2004, the Company may from time to
time Issue requests for proposals to purchase energy
and capacity on the open market. Niagara Mo-
hawk. among others. willbe requested by the
Company to bid on these future purchases.

(3) Subject to regulatory approval, Niagara
Mohawk and the Company Intend to enter into
agreements, which would cover the purchase by
the Company of the followingelectric capacity and
associated energy from Niagara Mohawk ifneeded:
15 MWeach year, subJect to a reservation charge,
commencing ln 1998 through 2004, up to a total of
75 MW,and up to an additional 150 MW in the
period 2001 through 2004 not subject to a reserva-
tion charge; (Ii) the option of Niagara Mohawk to bid
competitively for the Company's long-term pur-
chases of capacity and energy during the period
May 1995 through April2004 as indicated in Item (2)
and (iii)a revision ln the Company's 1968 option to
purchase Niagara Mohawk's 25% Interest in the
Roseton Plant in 2004 which would give Niagara
Mohawk an option to retain said 25% interest.

Entering into the agreements contemplated by
the Letter of Understanding willresult in capital and
operating and maintenance cost savings. The
Company's option to buy Con Edison's Interest In the
Roseton Plant is not affected by the Letter of Under-
standing.

Nuclear Uability and Insurance: The Price-Anderson
Act Is a federal law which limits the public liability
which can be imposed with respect to a nuclear
incident at a licensed nuclear electric generating
facility. Such Act also provides for assessment of
owners of all licensed nuclear units in the United
States for losses In excess of certain limits due to a
nuclear Incident at any such licensed unit. Under the
provisions of the Price-Anderson Act, the Company's
potential assessment (based on its 9% ownership
Interest in the Nine Mile 2 Plant and assuming that
the other Nine Mile2 Plant cotenants were to
contribute their proportionate shares of the potential
assessments) would be S6.8 million (subJect to
adjustment for inflation) and the Company could be
assessed S339,800 (subject to adjustment for inflation)
in respect to an additional surcharge, but would be
limited to a maximum assessment of S900,000 in any
year with respect to any nuclear incident. The public
liabilityinsurance coverage of S200 millionrequired
under the Price-Anderson Act for the Nine Mile2
Plant is provided through Niagara Mohawk.
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The Company also carries insurance to cover
the additional costs of replacement power (under
a Business Interruption and/or Extra Expense
Insurance Policy) Incurred by the Company fn the
event of a prolonged accidental outage of the
Nine Mile2 Plant. This insurance arrangement
provides for payments of up to $233200 per week if
the Nine Mile2 Plant experiences a continuous
accidental outage which extends beyond 21
weeks. Such payments willcontinue for 52 weeks
after expiration of the 21-week deductible period,
and thereafter the insurer shall pay MP%%d of the
weekly indemnity for a second 52-week period and
80% for a third 52-week period. Subject to certain
limitations, the Company may request prepayment,
In a lump sum amount, of the insurance payments
which would otherwise be paid to It with respect to
said third 52-week period, calculated on a net
present value basis.

The Company Is insured as to its respective
interest in the Nine Mite 2 Plant under properly
damage insurance provided through Niagara
Mohawk. The insurance coverage provides $500
millionof primary properly damage coverage for
Units 1 and 2 of the Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station
and $2.25 billionof excess property damage
coverage for the Nine Mile2 Plant. Such insurance
covers decontamination costs, debris removal and
repair and/or replacement of property.

The Company intends to maintain, or cause to
be maintained, insurance against such risks at the
Nine Mile 2 Plant, provided such coverage can be
obtained at an acceptable cost.

Natural Gas Supply: The Company presently has In
place five firm contracts (Contracts) for the supply
of an aggregate of 10A97,708 Mcf. of natural gas,
ail of which are with third-parly gas suppliers
(Suppliers). Under the Contracts, the Suppliers
deliver the gas to interstate pipeline companies
(Pipelines) and the Pipelines deliver the gas to the
Company's gas transmission system under separate
firm transportation contracts which the Company
has In place with such Pipelines. With the exception
of 20560 Mcf. per day ofgas purchased from
Canadian sources under contracts which expire In
January 2012, or approximately 3(% of total gas
purchases, all of the above gas supply contracts will
terminate in 1996 after the 1995-1996 winter heating
season and willbe replaced before the next winter
heating season.

The Company has in aggregate, gas storage
capability of39~ Mcf. per day, under long-term
contracts. The Company has a firm gas peaking
service, under contract, for the supply of 9,804 Mcf.
per day for 15 days during the period November 1-
March 31. This contract became effective
November 1, 1995 and willremain in effect through
March 31, 1998.

In addition to the above, the Company has In
place an Interim contract for the supply of up to
100.000 Mcf. per day of gas during Aprilthrough
October of each year for use as boiler gas at the

Roseton Plant. This interim contract expires on
March 31, 1996. The Company expects to replace
the Interim contract with a long-term contract
which willexpire in October 2006.

In April 1992, FERC issued its final rule (Order 636)
regarding the unbundling of natural gas supply
services from transportation and storage services.
These changes willrequire the Company to pay a
share of certain transition costs Incurred by the
Pipelines as a result of Order 636.

The Company has been billed S3.4 millionof
transition costs through December 31, 1995 by the
Pipelines. Transition costs are currently being
recovered by the Company through its gas cost
adjustment clause. The aggregate amount that
the Company willultimately be billed willdepend
on the outcome of FERC proceedings, the out-
come ofwhich the Company is not able to predict.
Depending on the outcome of such proceedings,
the Company projects the aggregate amount of
such transition costs could range between $4.0
millionand S6.0 millionover the next several years.
The Company expects to continue to recover such
costs through its gas cost adjustment clause.

The Company received $2.765 million in gas
supplier refunds during 1995, resulting from settle-
ments approved by FERC. Gas supplier refunds are
distributed to firm gas customers through the
Company's gas cost adjustment clause over a
subsequent twelve-month period as authorized by
the PSC.

Take-or-Pay Gas Costs: In prior years, many
interstate gas pipeline companies had entered into
contracts with gas producers which required the
p!peline companies to pay for a minimum amount
of gas whether or not the gas Is actually taken from
the producer (take-or-pay costs). Pursuant to the
FERC authorization, the Company's gas suppliers
have included certain amounts of their taker-pay
costs in the rates charged to the Company.

In October 1988, the PSC commenced a
proceeding to determine, among other things, the
recoverability and allocation in gas rates of New
YorkState distribution companies of contract take-
or-pay costs charged them by pipeline suppliers. In
connection with such proceeding, the PSC has
issued several orders which have directed, among
other things, that 65% of taker-pay costs being
Incurred by the Company may be recovered
through current rates, subject to refund.

On September 15, 1995, the Company submit-
ted to the PSC a Motion forApproval of a
settlement agreement entered into between the
Company and PSC Staff which would allow for the
Company to recover through its rates approxi-
mately S3.0 millionof deferred take-or-pay costs,
which amount willbe reduced by an associated
S1.7 million including $200,000 of Interest on tak~r-
pay refunds received from various gas transmission
companIes In 1994.

Such settlement agreement allows the Com-
pany to amortize and recover In rates the supplier
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take-or-pay charges deferred as of June 30, 1995
(an amount estimated to be, including interest, S3.0
million as of December 31, 1995), together with
interest accrued on such deferral up to the dates
rates reflecting such amortization are made
effective January 1996. Amortization periods and
specific rate recovery methods willvary, depending
on the type of customer. As of January 1996, the
Company willterminate the accrual of interest on
the balances of deferred costs to be amortized and
shall not be entitled to accrue additional interest on
such deferred costs during the amortization period.
The settlement agreement also provides for the
recovery of take-or-pay charges incurred after
July 1, 1995 on a current basis until the total of such
charges (excluding interest) equals S5.5 million. The
settlement requires that only 65% of the costs above
this amount be collected on a current basis. The
remaining 35% willbe spread out and recovered
over a 48-month period.

The PSC approved the Company's settlement
agreement in November 1995.—The Company
began to recover these take-or-pay charges in
January 1996.

Environmental Matters:
General: On an ongoing basis, the Company

assesses environmental issues which could impact
the Company and its ratepayers.

Clean Water Act Compliance: The Company is

a party to a proceeding before the New YorkState
Department of Environmental Conservation related
to the processing of permit renewal applications for
the Company's generating stations under the State
Pollution Discharge Elimination System. At this stage
of the proceeding, the Company can make no
determination as to the outcome of the proceed-
Ing or the impact, ifany, on the Company's
financial position.

Clean AirAct Amendments: The Clean AirAct
Amendments of 1990 (CAAAmendments) added
several new programs which address attainment
and maintenance of national ambient air quality
standards. These include control of emissions from
fossil-fue!ed electric power plants that affect "acid
rain" and ozone.

The Phase II "acid rain" emissions reduction
requirements do not apply to the Company's
generating plants until January 1, 2000; however,
the Company has elected to have the Roseton
Plant covered under the Phase I acid rain regulation
40 CFR Part 72 which went Into effect in 1995. More
specifically, the Roseton Plant has been condition-
ally Identified as a substitute for a Phase I plant.
Such a substitution, if implemented, results in the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) providing
emlsslons allowances to the Roseton Plant. Emission
allowances that are not needed for current year
emissions may be held for use in future years or sold.
Adecision by the Company to implement a substitu-
tion plan must be made each year by December 1.

The Company's emissions of nitrogen oxides
were subject to additional controls effective
May 31, 1995 under Title I of the CAAAmendments.
To comply with these requirements, the Company
Installed nitrogen oxides emlsslons controh at a cost
of S4.7 millionfor the Danskammer Plant and S3.7
millionfor the Company's share of the Roseton
Plant. The Northeast Ozone Transport Commission
(OTC). of which New YorkState is a member, has
agreed that additional reductions of nitrogen
oxides emission willbe required in 1999 and,
possibly, In the year 2003. Because regulations
have not yet been promulgated by New YorkState
to implement this agreement, the specific reduc-
tions required at the Company's facilities have not
been determined. The Company expects that it will
have adequate financial resources to comply with
the requirements of the CAAAmendments.

Former Manufactured Gas Plant Facilities: In
May 1995, the City of Newburgh, New York (City)
filed suit against the Company in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York.
The City alleges that the Company has released
certain allegedly hazardous substances without a
permit from the site of the Company's former coal
gasification plant (Central Hudson Site) in New-
burgh, New York into the ground at the Central
Hudson Site and into adjacent and nearby property
of the City, fn violation of the federal Comprehen-
sive Environmental Response, Compensation and
LiabilityAct (CERClA), the federal Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) and the
federal Emergency Planning and Community Right
to Know Act (EPCRA). The City also alleges a
number of nuisance, trespass, damage and
indemnification claims pursuant to New YorkState
law.

The City seeks injunctive relief against such
alleged disposal, storage or release of hazardous
substances at the Central Hudson Site, remediation
and abatement of the conditions alleged to lead
to endangerment of the City's property, payment
of restitution of clean-up costs and money dam-
ages of at least S70 million,assessment of certain
cMIpenalties under RCRA, CERClA and EPCRA,
and recovery of the City's costs and attorneys'ees
in such action.

In its answer to the City's complaint, the
Company denied liabilityand asserted affirmative
defenses and counterclaims against the City. The
Company also filed a third-party complaint against
John Doe defendants whose identities are

presently unknown but who may be responsible for
some or all of the contamination that h alleged to
exist on the City's properly.

ln October 1995, the Company and the New
YorkState Department of Environmental Conserva-
tion (NYSDEC) entered Into an Order on Consent
regarding the development and implementation of
an investigation and remediation program for the
Central Hudson Site and the City's adjacent and
nearby property.
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In November 1995, the Company and the City
reached an agreement in a Memorandum of
Understanding to postpone until August 1, 1996 any
further action under the City's lawsuit pending the
results of the studies required under said Order on
Consent. The agreement also provides for the
resumption of settlement negotiations between the
Company and the City. The District Court has
approved a schedule of proceedings consistent
with such Memorandum.

At this time, the Company can make no
prediction as to the outcome of this rnatter, nor can
It make reasonable estimates of the cost of the
actMtles required under the Order on Consent.
However, the Company has put Its Insurance
carriers on notice and intends to pursue reimburse-
ment from them. The Company cannot predict the
extent of reimbursement that willbe available from
its carriers at this time.

By letter dated September 22, 1995, the
Company has petitioned the PSC for authorization
to defer ail costs Including legal defense costs, but
excluding the Company's labor, related to environ-
rnental site Investigation and remediation actions
that were Incurred by the Company in 1995 and
thereafter fn connection with this matter. These
expenses are not reasonably known or estimable
by the Company at this time. nor can the Com-
pany predict at this time what action the PSC will
take on such letter petition. Such costs for 1995
amounted to S719,700 and were included In
Deferred Charges&ther" on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet.

Asbestos litigation: Snce 1987, the Company,
along with many other parties, has been Joined as a
defendant or third-party defendant in approxi-
mately 740 asbestos lawsuits commenced fn New
YorkState and federal courts. The plaintiffs in these
lawsuits have each sought millions of dollars in
compensatory and punitive damages from all
defendants. The cases were brought by or on
behalf of individuals who have allegedly suffered
inJury from exposure to asbestos, including exposure
whIch allegedly occurred at Company facilities.

Approximately 155 of these cases have been
dismissed with respect to the Company, and the
Company has agreed to settle 105 of the cases for
amounts which are not material In relation to the
consolidated A'nancial statements. Consequently,
on January 1, 1996, the Company was a defendant
in approximately 480 asbestos cases. Although the
Company is presently unable to assess the validity
of the remaining asbestos lawsuits, and accordingly
cannot determine the ultimate liabilityrelating to
these cases, based on Information known to the
Company at this time, including its experience in
settling asbestos cases and In obtaining dismissals of
asbestos cases, the Company believes that the
cost to be Incurred in connection with the remain-
ing lawsuits willnot have a material adverse effect
on the Company's financial position.

The Company is Insured under successive
comprehensive general liabilitypolicies Issued by a
number of lnsurers, has put such insurers on notice of
the asbestos lawsuits and has demanded reimburse-
ment for its defense costs and liability.

Tax Matters:
Assessments: The Internal Revenue Service (IRS)

has completed Its examination of the Company's
federal Income tax returns for 1987 and 1988. The
IRS Agent's Report proposes adjustments which
have the potential to increase the Company's tax
liabilityby approximately S16.0 million plus interest.

, Included in the proposed adjustments are signNcant
Issues related to the tax In-service date of the Nine
Mile2 Plant. In May 1994, the Company, in defend-
Ing its position regarding Nine Mile2 Plant and other
tax matters, filed a Protest with the Appeals Office of
the IRS. The Appeals ONce of the IRS has not yet
rendered a decision on such Protest. To the extent
the IRS Is able to sustain its positions on Nine Mile 2
Plant, the Company willbe required to absorb a
portion of the resulting tax liability. Although the
Company is unable to assess its ultimate liabilityIn
this matter, the Company believes it would be able
to recover a significant portion of any additional
liabilityIncluding Interest through rates. Accordingly,
the Company expects that the ultimate resolution of
this matter willnot have a material adverse effect
on the Company's financial position.

Rental Expenses and Lease Commitments: The
Company has lease commitments expiring at
various dates, principally for real property and data
processing equipment. None of these leases
Involves any major facilities or any material
noncancelable rental commitments.

Other Matters: The Company is involved In various
other legal and administrative proceedings inciden-
tal to its business which are In various stages. While
these matters collectively Involve substantial
amounts, it Is the opinion of management that theIr
ultimate resolution willnot have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial position or results
of operations.

Included ln such proceedings are two lawsuits
against the Company arising from a November 1992
explosion tn a dwelling In Catskill, New York InvoMng
personal Injuries. Including the death of an occu-
pant, and property damage. One of the lawsuits
seeks recovery from the Company of compensatop
and punNve damages in the sum of S4.0 million.
The other lawsuit seeks an unspecified amount of
compensatory and punitive damages.

The PSC, by Order Issued and effective January 7,
1994, approved an Agreement which provides for a
program for evaluating and replacing cast Iron and
unprotected steel pipeline facilities, and for an
investment In four permanent employee train!ng
centers. The Company's shareholders contributed
S1.0 million In 1995 and $500QS In 1994 toward the
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costs of such training centers and replacement
program.

No shareholder contribution willbe required ln
1996, however. under such Agreement the
Company's shareholders may be required to
contribute In 1997 from SO to S500fXS toward the
cost of such pipeline replacement program,
depending on the Company's completion of
certain tasks by specified dates. The Company
believes these tasks willbe completed by the
specified cfates and, therefore, the Company's
shareholders would have no further contribution
obligations under such Agreement.

In addition to the above, on February 12, 1994,
a fire and an explosion destroyed a residence in the
Village of Wapplngers Falls, New York, in the
Company's service territory. Ashort time later, a
second explosion and fire destroyed a nearby
commercial facility. Three lawsuits have arisen from
the Wapplngers Falls Incident. One of the lawsuits
seeks recovery from the Company of compensa-
tory and punitive damages fn the sum of S1.0
million,one seeks recovery of S250,000 In compen-
satory damages, and the other lawsuit seeks an
unspecified amount of damages against the
Company.

The Company Is investigating the above claims
and presently has insufficien information on which
to predict their outcome. The Company believes
that It has adequate Insurance to cover any
compensatory damages that might be awarded.
The Company's insurance, however, does not
extend to punitive damages which, Ifawarded,
could have a materfal adverse effect on the
Company's financial position. At this time, the
Company can make no prediction as to any other
litigation which may arise out of these incidents.

NOTE 9 - DEPARTMENTAL
INFORMATION

The Company fs engaged In the electric and
natural gas utilitybusinesses and serves the Mid-
Hudson Valley region of New YorkState. Total
revenues and operating Income before income
taxes (expressed as percentages), derived from
etectrfc and gas operations for each of the last
three years, were as follows:

1995
1994
1993

Percent of
MgUhmm
Ehzfrh Gm

80% 20%
80% 20%
82% 18%

Percent of Operating

Ehchh Gm

9P/o 10'/o

89% 11%

89% 11%

For the year ended December 31, 1995, the
Company served an average of 261.876 electric
and 59,895 gas customers. Of the Company's total
electric revenues during that period, approximately
43% was derived from residential customers, 32%
from commercial customers, 18% from Industrial
customers and 7% from other utilltfes and mfscelta-
neous sources. Of the Company's total gas
revenues during that period, approximately 39%
was derived from residential customers, 29% from
commercial customers, 4% from industrial custom-
ers, 24% from lnterruptfble customers and 4% from
miscellaneous sources (including revenues from
transportation of customerwwned gas).

The Company's largest customer Is Interna-
tional Busfness Machines Corporation (IBM),which
accounted for approximately 10% of the
Company's total electric revenues and approxi-
mately 6% of Its total gas revenues for the year
ended December 31, 1995. Reference fs made to
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan-

cial Condition and Results of Operations for further
information regarding IBM.
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Certain additional information regarding these segments Is set forth In the following table. General
corporate expenses, property common to both segments and depreciation of such common property have
been allocated to the segments in accordance with practice established for regulatory purposes.

Operating Revenues ...........................

Operating Expenses:
Fuel and purchased electricity .....
Purchased natural gas ...................

Depreciation and amortization ....
Other, excluding income tax ........

Total.

Operating Income before Income Tax .....

Federal income tax, including
deferred income tax - net .....................

Operating Income ~ ...~
Construction Expenditures ..........................

Identifiable Assets at December
31'et

utilityplant
Construction work In progress ....~..........

Total utilityplant ...........................
Materiais and supplies ..........................

Total

$409,445

113,263

37,503
168 313
319,079

90,366

26 632

$ 63,734

$ 41,195

$784,345
38 978

823,323
~2J42
$ 846 490

111,984

36597
~172 57

320,638

90A44

122,250

35g>25
~1731 7

331942

91,883

62,339
3,964

22
93,202

9,568

60%8
3,783

~29 83
93%4

10,732

53,9OO

4%7
25210
83,167

11281

S 65,110

S 49316

MK42
$ 66241

S 43%7

2408
$ 7,160

$ 9,074

~7'it
$ 8593

S 8,729

~gl
$ 8320

S 10,940

$ 776,169
~46 79
823948

ME%9
$ 850,128

$777044
~38 24
812 A68

ML92
S 840531

$ 103,979
9 792

113,771
4 423

$ 118 194

S 96452

108025
~9R
$ 114334

S 95074
~717

102391
7m

S 109,745

Electric Gas
32Kt 12K 3224 32K

(rhousands of Doiiors)

$411,082 $422,925 $ 102,770 $ 104~ S 94A48

'tdenttttabte assetsnot tnctirded herefn are constdered to be corporate assetsand have not been attocated between the eJectrtcand gas segments.

NOTE 10 - FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments forwhich it is practicable to
estimate that value:

Cash and Temporary Cash Investments: The cany-
Ing amount approximates fair value because of the
short maturity of those Instruments.

Cumulative Preferred Stock Subject to Mandatory
Redemption: The fairvalue Is estimated based on
the quoted market price of similar instruments.

Long-Term Debt: The fairvalue Is estimated based
on the quoted market prices for the same or similar
issues or on the current rates offered to the Com-
pany for debt of the same remaining maturltles and
quality.

Notes Payabie: The carrying amount approximates
fair value because of the short maturity of those
instruments.

The estimated fairvalues of the Company's financial instruments are as follows:

Cash and temporary cash investments.
Cumulative preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption ....
Long-term debt (including current rnaturifies) .................................
Notes payable.

Carrying
hmeunt

$ 15A78
(35,000)

(390,822)

Fair Carrying
Eduu hmauat

(iho$2$rads of Doiiars)

$ 15A78 S 5,792
(34,875) (35OZ)

(411,299) (392%9)
(3NO)

Fair

$ 5,792

(29%0)
(389,957)
(3')
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Effective January 1, 1994, the Company
adopted SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain
investments in Debt and Equity Securities" (SFAS
115) issuedby the FASB. The adoption of SFAS 115
resulted in the recording of an unrealized net
holding gain as an adjustment to common stock
equity. This unrealized net holding gain represents
the amount by which the market value of an
investment that the Company maintains in an
insurance company exceeds Its cost, net of tax
effects. During 1995, the Company sold all of its
Investment In the stock of an insurance company
which the Company held as an "available-for-
sale" investment. The Company recognized net

proceeds of S2.9 millionon the stock sold, which
cost $775500. This sale resulted in a gross realized
gain of S2.1 millionwhich is recorded in the
Consolidated Statement of Income.

Additionally, in accordance with SFAS 115,
investments in debt and equity securities held in
the Nine Mile 2 Plant Decommissioning Trust Fund
(Fund) are reported at fair value. Pursuant to PSC
accounting requirements, gains or losses on Fund
investments are included in nuclear decommis-
sioning trust assets and added to the
accumulated decommissioning component of
accumulated depreciation included in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

SELECTED QUARTERLYFINANCIALDATA(UNAUDITED)
Selected financial data for each quarterly period within 1995 and 1994 are presented below:

Quarter Ended:

Operating Operating
Revenues income

(thousands of Dolors)

Income
Availat)ie

for
Common

Stock

Earnings Per
Average
Share of

Common
Stock

0~0$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $$

(Donors)

3225
March 31 .

June 30
September 30 ..

December 31

$ 144586 $24%4
118418 14,731

127&7 18817
121.364 13,142

$ 18273 S1.06
9574 .55

12260 .70
7&3 A3

i%4
March 31.
June 30
:September 30.
Decernber31

$ 162,836
117214
116,091

'19527

$28,175
14%0
17bS
12,918

S20,785 S1.22

7guS .45
11,152 .65
6,219 .36
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Directors Officers
L. Wallace Cross
Poughkeepsie, NY
Former Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of the Corpo-
ration; retired; member of the Com-
mittees on Audit and Finance '1990

Jack Effron
Poughkeepsie, NY
President, EFCO Products, Inc.;
Chairman of the Committee on
Compensation and Succession and
member of the Executive Committee
and the Committee on Rnance '1987

Richard H. Eyman
Salem, SC
Former Senior Vice President,
Broutilard Communications, Division
of J. Walter Thompson Company;
retired; member of the Committees
on Auditand Compemation and
Succemon '1984

John E. Mack, III
Poughkeepsie, NY
Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer; Chairman of the
Executive and Retirement Commit-
tees; member of the Committee on
Finance '1981

Howard C. St. John
Glenford, NY
Chairman of the Board, Ulster
Savings Bank; Lawyer, Howard C. St.

John &Associates; Vice Chairman of
the Board; Chairman of the Commit-
tee on Finance; member of the
Executive Committee and the
Committee on Audit "1984

Edward P. Swyer
Albany, NY
President, The Swyer Companies;
member of the Committee on
Compensation and Succession and
the Retirement Committee '1990

John E. Mack, III
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

Paul J. Gancl
President and Chief Operating Officer

Ronald P. Brand
Vice President —Engineering
and Environmental Affairs

Benon Budziak
Vice President —Production

Joseph J. DeVirgilio,Jr.
Vice President —Human Resources
and Administratton

John F. Drain u>

Vice Presktent —Finance and Controfer

Carl E. Meyer
Vice President —Customer Services

Allan R. Page
Vice President —Corporate Services

Frances D. Fergusson
Poughkeepsie, NY
President, Vassar College; member of
the Committee on Compensation
and Succession 1993

Heinz K. Fridrich
Fernandina Beach, FL
Courtesy Professor, University of
Flortda, Gainsville, Ft; Former Vice
President —Manufacturing, Interna-
tional Business Machines Corp.;
Chairman of the Committee on
Audit; member of the Executive
Committee '1988

~ Edward F.X. Gallagher
Newburgh, NY
President and Owner, Gallagher
Transportation Services: member of
the Committee on Finance 1984

Paul J. Gancl
Poughkeepsie, NY
President and Chief Operating
Officer; member of the Executive
Committee and the Committee on
Finance '1989

Charles LaForge
Rhinebeck, NY
President ofWayfarer Inns and Owner
of Beekman Arms; member of the
Retirement Committee '1987

'ear joined the board

Officers Of
The Board
John E. Mack, III
Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer; Chairman of the
Executive and Retirement CommNees

Howard C. St. John
V>ce Chairman of the Board and Cha'r-

rrxe of the Committee on Rnance

Jack Effron
Chairman of the Committee on
Compensation and Succession

Heinz K. Frldrlch
Chairman of the Committee on Aucrit

Ellen Ahearn
Secretary

Donna S. Doyle i»
Controller

Steven V. Lant
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary

Gladys L Cooper i»
Assistant Vice President—
Governmental Relations

Arthur R. Upright
Assistant Vice President—
Cost &Rate and Financial Planning

William P. Reilly
Assistant Secretary and Assistant
Treasurer

<'> Retired effective July 1. 1995I Promoted effective April4, 1995
+ Appointed effective

September 5, 1995

AffirmativeAction Statement of Policy
It Is the poricy of Central Hudson Gas &Electric Corporation to provkle equal
employment opportunNes for alt persons. Central Hudson Is committed to recruit.
hire, train, and promote persons in all posNons, without regard to race, sex, color,
creed, religion, age, national origin, persons with a dkabity, disabled veteran or
Vietnamwra veteran status, except where sex Is a bona fide occupational qualifica-
tion. The Company wm base decisions on employment so as to further the prtndpte of
equal employment opportunity. Central Hudson wti insure that promotke deciskes
are in accord with principles of equal emptoyment opportunity by imposing only vard
requirements for promotkeal opportunNes. Central Hudson witt insure that atl
personnel actions such as compensation, benefits. transfers, layoffs, return from k>yoff,
employer sponsixed training. educatke, tuNon assistance, social and recreational
programs, willbe administered without regard to race, sex, color, creed, religke, age,
natkeal origin, CkabYdy, cfkabted veteran or VietnarrH.ra veteran status.



Holiday Lighting
Fireworks during the December holiday season helped mark the 'Celebration of

Light'n

the City of Poughkeepsie and the lighting of the Franklin D. Roosevelt bridge
for the first time since before World War II~ Central Hudson designed the lighting for
the bridge towers as part of our Marketing program to promote outdoor lighting
and our free lighting design service. We are promoting outdoor lighting for homes
and businesses or for any location where there is a desire to enhance visibility,

attractiveness, safety or security.

Annual Report photography: cover, inside front cover and pages 9, 13 and 14, David Palmer
of On Location; pages 2 and 14, New York Stock Exchange; page 7, IBMMicroelectronics;
page 11, Paul Tesoro; page 13, Boston Edison Company; back cover, Spencer Ainsley/
Poughkeepsie Journal.


